
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

    MAY 6, 2013 



Table of Contents

Agenda 3
Public Hearing and Action:

12-01-03 Case Analysis 6
Public Hearing and Action

Map 24
Resolution 25
Resolution 2 26

Public Hearing and Action:
13-04 Case Analysis 27
13-04 Application, TRC Comments, TRC Response 34

Public Hearing and Action:
PB 13-03 Case Analysis 56
PB 13-03 Site Plan 65
PB 13-03 Application 69
PB 13-03 Community Meeting 72

Consideration and Approval of Recommendation to Award Bid
for Barco Way to Barnhill Contracting Company

Barco Way Recommendation of Award 74
Appointment to Senior Citizen Advisory Board

Senior Center Advisory Board Appointment Form 77
Appointments to Game Commission

Game Commission Appointment Form 78
Game Commission Applications 79

Budget Amendments
Budget Amendments 82

Approval of April 1, 2013 Minutes
April 1 Minutes 100

CDBG Monthly Status Report
CDBG Monthly Report 113

JCPC Funding Plan FY 2014
FY 14 JCPC Summary 114
FY 14 JCPC Detail 139

Regional Aviation and Technical Training Center Change Order
002

Regional Aviation & Tech Training Center CO 002 164
Approval of Ordinance to demolish property located at 4317
Caratoke Hwy, Barco, NC

Demolition of 4317 Caratoke Highway Property 170
Donlan 1 179
Donlan 2 180
Donlan 3 181
Donlan 4 182
Donlan 5 183

1



Donlan 6 184
Donlan Garage 185

Approval of Records Retention and Disposition Schedule
Records Retention & Disposition Schedule 186

Consideration of Lease Agreement with the Truck Accessory
Center

Truck Accessory Center Lease 187
Truck Accessory Center 191

Resolution Opposing HB 983 Designating Red Drum,Spotted
Sea Trout and Striped Bass as Coastal Game Fish

Oppose Game Fish Status 193
HB 983 Fisheries Economic Development Act 194

Resolution Authorizing "Piggybacking" Purchase of 800 Mhz
Radios and Equipment

Resolution-Piggybacking-800 Mhz Radios 198
Resolution - Authorizing Finance Director and Deputy Finance
Director to wire funds through Vantage South

Vantage South Resolution 202
Resolution Surplus Sheriff K-9 Zeva

Resolution 204
Budget Amendments - TDA

Budget Amendments 205

2

dembrey
Typewritten Text



Document last changed: 5/6/2013 8:37 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, May 06, 2013 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

 
7:00 pm Call to Order 
 

A) Invocation 
B) Pledge of Allegiance 
C) Approval of Agenda 
D) Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; 
please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Administrative Reports 
 

A) Update on YMCA by Billy George and Dean Mattix  
 
Public Hearings 
 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-01 Southland Trade Corporation; PB 
12-02 Border Station; and PB 12-03 The Spot:  Request to amend the 
Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions to allow Electronic 
Gaming Operations in the General Business (GB) Zoning District.  
Substantial change in the proposed amendments may be made as a result 
of comments, objections, debate and discussion received during the public 
hearing.  Such substantial change may include, but is not limited to, the 
zoning district or districts in which Electronic Gaming Operations are 
permitted, allowing Electronic Gaming Operations as a principle, 
combined or accessory use of property with a retail business, the 
maximum number of allowed machines in an Electronic Gaming 
Operation, maximum floor area of a building that may be occupied by an 
Electronic Gaming Operation, the number of required parking spaces, 
location distance from other uses, and hours of operation for an Electronic 
Gaming Operation. 

dembrey
Typewritten Text
3



Document last changed: 5/6/2013 8:37 AM 

 
B) Public Hearing and Action to request amendment for "No Wake" Zone in 

Tull's Bay Colony 
C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours, LLC:  

Request for a Use Permit for an Outdoor Tour Operator.  The property is 
located at 817B Ocean Trail, Tax Map 116H, Parcel 817B, Poplar Branch 
Beach Township. 

D) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-03 Indian Gap Mainland Tours: 
Request for a Use Permit for an Outdoor Tour Operator (boat tours).  The 
property is located at 169 Walnut Island Boulevard, Tax Map 107, Parcel 
64, Poplar Branch Township. 

New Business 

 
A) Consideration and Approval of Recommendation to Award Bid for 

Barco Way to Barnhill Contracting Company and Authorize County 
Manager to Execute Contract With Barnhill Contracting Company 

B) Board Appointments: 
1. Appointment to Senior Citizen Advisory Board 
2. Appointments to Game Commission 

C) Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget Amendments 
2. Approval of April 1, 2013 Minutes 
3. CDBG Monthly Status Report 
4. JCPC Funding Plan FY 2014 
5. Regional Aviation and Technical Training Center Change Order 

002 
6. Approval of Ordinance to demolish property located at 4317 

Caratoke Hwy, Barco, NC 
7. Approval of Records Retention and Disposition Schedule 
8. Consideration of Lease Agreement with the Truck Accessory 

Center 
9. Resolution Opposing HB 983 Designating Red Drum, Spotted Sea 

Trout and Striped Bass as Coastal Game Fish 
10. Resolution Authorizing "Piggybacking" Purchase of 800 Mhz 

Radios and Equipment 
11. Resolution - Authorizing Finance Director and Deputy Finance 

Director to wire funds through Vantage South 
12. Resolution Surplus Sheriff K-9 Zeva 

D) Commissioner’s Report 
E) County Manager’s Report 

dembrey
Typewritten Text
4



Document last changed: 5/6/2013 8:37 AM 

 
Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Budget Amendments - TDA 

Adjourn 

Closed Session 
Closed Session pursuant to (1) G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the county 
attorney in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege; (2) pursuant to G.S. 
143-318(a)(5) to establish or instruct county staff concerning the position to be 
taken by or on behalf of the county in negotiating the price and any other material 
terms of a contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by 
purchase, option or exchange owned by Outer Banks Ventures, Inc. located at 
1102 Corolla Village Drive to be used for any public purpose; and (3) pursuant to 
G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss a personnel matter. 

Adjourn 

dembrey
Typewritten Text
5



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 1 of 18 
 

 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 

To:   Board of Commissioners  
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: April 25, 2013 
 
Subject: PB 12-01, PB 12-02, and PB 12-03 Text Amendments for Electronic Gaming 

Operations (Internet Sweepstakes)  
 
 
Enclosed are text amendment requests to establish machine based sweepstake operations 
(internet sweepstake cafés) as a permissible use in the county, including establishing use and 
development standards.  The requests include a version prepared by staff as directed by the 
Board of Commissioners (Option 1), and the Planning Board’s recommendation (Option 2).  Also, 
included are separate requests from Southland Trade Corporation and North River Tobacco Barn 
(Option 3), Border Station (Option 4), and Heath Bush (The Spot) (Option 5).  
 
The previous proposals were written for the old Unified Development Ordinance and a couple 
classified internet sweepstake cafés as an accessory use.  The new UDO better defines accessory 
uses and therefore, as written, internet sweepstake cafés would be classified as a primary use.  
However, the use will still be required to be in conjunction with a retail sales establishment. Staff 
has highlighted formatting changes and also included recommended language so that the 
proposal better fits with the new UDO.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 2 of 18 
 

OPTION 1 – BOC – Combination Use 
PB 12-01 – 12-03 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement to establish Electronic 
Gaming Operation as a permissible use.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Table 4.1.1 Summary Use Table is amended by adding the following underlined 
language, and renumbering accordingly: 
 
Note: The previous proposals written for the old UDO classified electronic gaming operations as 
an accessory use.  The new UDO better defines accessory uses and therefore, as written, the 
electronic gaming operations would be classified as a primary use.  However, the use will still be 
required to be in conjunction with a retail sales establishment.   
 

TTAABBLLEE  44..11..11::  SSUUMMMMAARRYY  UUSSEE  TTAABBLLEE  
PROPOSED UDO PROCEDURE: Z = Zoning Compliance Permit;      U = Use Permit;      MP = Allowed with Master Plan;       blank cell = Prohibited 

ZONING DISTRICT (CURRENT DISTRICT IN PARENTHESIS)  
[NOTE: OVERLAY OR SUB-DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS MAY FURTHER LIMIT USES] 

USE 
CATEGORY USE TYPE 

R
C

  

A
G

  

S
F

M
  

S
F

O
  

S
F

R
  

S
F

I 

M
X

R
  

G
B

  

L
B

  

C
C

 

V
C

 

L
I  

H
I  

P
D

-R
 

P
D

-M
 

P
D

-O
 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 R
E

Q
. 

(4
.2

._
__

) 

COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 
Electronic Gaming Operations         Z         4.F.1 

Fitness center       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  

Recreation, indoor       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  Recreation / 
Entertainm
ent, Indoor Theater       Z Z Z Z Z   MP MP MP  

 
Item 2: That Section 4.2.4 Commercial Uses is amended by adding the following underlined 
language, and renumbering accordingly: 

F.  Recreation/Entertainment, Indoor 

 (1)  Electronic Gaming Operations 
Electronic gaming operations shall comply with the following standards: 

(a) General Requirements 

(i) All electronic gaming operations shall be in conjunction with and 
located on the same lot as a principle retail sales establishment, 
and under the same ownership in all respects.   

(ii) The electronic gaming operation shall not exceed 25% of the 
gross floor area of all the buildings used for the principle retail 
use.  

7



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 3 of 18 
 

(iii) Each electronic gaming operation shall be limited to a maximum 
of X gaming terminals per location, regardless of size.  

(iv) No electronic gaming operation shall be located within 500 feet 
of a school, child care center, or religious institution.   

 

Note: In the new UDO, use separation standards are measured from 
the closest edge of one lot to the closest edge of the other lot.   
 

(v) Electronic gaming operations are prohibited in the Poplar 
Branch-Outer Banks and Fruitville Townships. 

(vi) On premise signs advertising the electronic gaming operation 
are prohibited.  

(b) Operation Requirements 

(i) Operating hours shall be the same as the principle retail sales 
establishment.   

(ii) There shall be no alcohol or food sold, provided, or consumed 
in the gaming area.  

(iii) The establishment shall be restricted to patrons and employees 
at least 18 years of age.  

(c) Amortization  
Any electronic gaming operation that lawfully existed prior to date of 
adoption will be granted 6 months from date of adoption in which to 
bring the electronic gaming operation into compliance with the 
standards of this Ordinance. 
 

Item 3: That Table 5.1.3.C: Minimum Off-Street Parking Standards is amended by adding the 
following underlined language: 
 

TTAABBLLEE  55..11..33..CC::    MMIINNIIMMUUMM  OOFFFF--SSTTRREEEETT  PPAARRKKIINNGG  SSTTAANNDDAARRDDSS  

USE 

CATEGORY 
USE TYPE 

MINIMUM NUMBER 

OF PARKING 

SPACES 
COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

Electronic Gaming Operation 1 per 1 gaming terminal 
Fitness center 1 per every 300 sf 
Recreation, indoor 1 per every 300 sf 

Recreation / 
Entertainment, 
Indoor 

Theater 1 per every 4 seats 
 
Item 4: That Section 10.5: Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined language 
and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
ELECTRONIC GAMING OPERATION  
An Electronic Gaming Operation is any business enterprise where persons utilize electronic machines, 
including sweepstakes, and where cash, merchandise or other items of value are redeemed or otherwise 
distributed, whether or not the value of such distribution is determined by electronic games played or 
by predetermined odds.  This term includes, but is not limited to internet sweepstakes, video 

8



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 4 of 18 
 

sweepstakes, electronic gaming operations or cybercafés, who have a finite pool of winners.  This does 
not include any lottery approved by the State of North Carolina.  
 
 
Item 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
Item 6: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of  
  , 201 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 5 of 18 
 

OPTION 2 - Planning Board – Combination 
Use 

PB 12-01 – 12-03 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement to establish Electronic 
Gaming Operation as a permissible use.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Table 4.1.1 Summary Use Table is amended by adding the following underlined 
language, and renumbering accordingly: 
 
Note: The previous proposal was written for the old UDO and classified electronic gaming 
operations as an accessory use.  The new UDO better defines accessory uses and therefore, as 
written, the electronic gaming operations would be classified as a primary use.  However, the use 
will still be required to be in conjunction with a retail sales establishment.  There are no changes to 
the standards as previously written other than formatting.  Staff has highlighted formatting 
changes and also included recommended language so that the proposal better fits with the new 
UDO.  
 

TTAABBLLEE  44..11..11::  SSUUMMMMAARRYY  UUSSEE  TTAABBLLEE  
PROPOSED UDO PROCEDURE: Z = Zoning Compliance Permit;      U = Use Permit;      MP = Allowed with Master Plan;       blank cell = Prohibited 

ZONING DISTRICT (CURRENT DISTRICT IN PARENTHESIS)  
[NOTE: OVERLAY OR SUB-DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS MAY FURTHER LIMIT USES] 

USE 
CATEGORY USE TYPE 

R
C

  

A
G

  

S
F

M
  

S
F

O
  

S
F

R
  

S
F

I 

M
X

R
  

G
B

  

L
B

  

C
C

 

V
C

 

L
I  

H
I  

P
D

-R
 

P
D

-M
 

P
D

-O
 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 R
E

Q
. 

(4
.2

._
__

) 

COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 
Electronic Gaming Operations deleted 
“(accessory use)” 

       Z         4.F.1 

Fitness center       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  

Recreation, indoor       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  
Recreation / 
Entertainm
ent, Indoor Theater       Z Z Z Z Z   MP MP MP  

 
Item 2: That Section 4.2.4 Commercial Uses is amended by adding the following underlined 
language, and renumbering accordingly: 

F.  Recreation/Entertainment, Indoor 

 (1)  Electronic Gaming Operations 
Electronic gaming operations shall comply with the following standards: 
 
 

10



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 6 of 18 
 

(a) General Requirements 

(i) All electronic gaming operations shall be in conjunction with and 
located on the same lot as a principle retail sales establishment, 
and under the same ownership in all respects.  Changed 
“principle retail use” to “principle retail sales establishment”. 

(ii) The electronic gaming operation shall not exceed 30% of the 
gross floor area of all the buildings used for the principle retail 
use.  

(iii) The gross floor area of the gaming area shall be not less than 15 
square feet per gaming terminal. 

(iv) Each electronic gaming operation shall be limited to a maximum 
of 40 gaming terminals per location, regardless of size.  

(v) No electronic gaming operation shall be located within 500 feet 
of a school, child care center, religious institution, or other 
electronic gaming establishment.  The measurement of distance 
shall be a straight line from the closest point of the buildings at 
which the uses are located, not the closest point of the unit or 
space within the buildings at which the electronic gaming 
operation is located.  

 
The new UDO better defines separation requirements.  Specifically, 
when uses are required to be separated, the distance is measured from 
lot line to lot line.  Staff would recommend keeping the UDO 
consistent, however, this would increase the above separation distance 
as it is measured from building to building.     
 

(vi) Electronic gaming operations are prohibited in the Poplar 
Branch-Outer Banks and Fruitville Townships. 

(vii) On premise signs advertising the electronic gaming operation 
are prohibited.  

(a) Operation Requirements 

(i) Operating hours shall be the same as the principle retail use.  
The electronic gaming operation shall be closed from 2:00 am 
to 1:00 pm on Sundays.  

(ii) There shall be no alcohol sold, provided, or consumed in the 
gaming area.  

(iii) The establishment shall be restricted to patrons and employees 
at least 18 years of age.  

(iv) No firearms are allowed inside any gaming area, except by 
sworn law enforcement officials or security employees.  

 
 
 
 
 

11



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 7 of 18 
 

 

Item 3: That Table 5.1.3.C: Minimum Off-Street Parking Standards is amended by adding the 
following underlined language: 
 

TTAABBLLEE  55..11..33..CC::    MMIINNIIMMUUMM  OOFFFF--SSTTRREEEETT  PPAARRKKIINNGG  SSTTAANNDDAARRDDSS  

USE 

CATEGORY 
USE TYPE 

MINIMUM NUMBER 

OF PARKING 

SPACES 
COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

Electronic Gaming Operation 

1 per 2 gaming terminals 

OR 
1 per 1 gaming terminal* 

Fitness center 1 per every 300 sf 
Recreation, indoor 1 per every 300 sf 

Recreation / 
Entertainment, 
Indoor 

Theater 1 per every 4 seats 
*Staff recommends a one parking space per gaming terminal standard.  
 
Item 4: That Section 10.5: Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined language 
and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
ELECTRONIC GAMING OPERATION  
An Electronic Gaming Operation is any business enterprise where persons utilize electronic machines, 
including sweepstakes, and where cash, merchandise or other items of value are redeemed or otherwise 
distributed, whether or not the value of such distribution is determined by electronic games played or 
by predetermined odds.  This term includes, but is not limited to internet sweepstakes, video 
sweepstakes, electronic gaming operations or cybercafés, who have a finite pool of winners.  This does 
not include any lottery approved by the State of North Carolina.  
 
Item 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
Item 6: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of  
  , 201 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     

12



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 8 of 18 
 

MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 9 of 18 
 

OPTION 3 – Southland/Tobacco Barn 
PB 12-01 – 12-03 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement to establish Electronic 
Gaming Operation as a permissible use.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
Note: The previous proposal was written for the old UDO and listed electronic gaming operations 
as an accessory use.  The new UDO better defines accessory uses and therefore, as written, the 
electronic gaming operations would be classified as a primary use.  However, the use will still be 
required to be in conjunction with a retail sales establishment.  There are no changes to the 
standards as previously written other than formatting.  Staff has highlighted formatting changes 
and also included recommended language so that the proposal better fits with the new UDO. 
 
Item 1: That Table 4.1.1 Summary Use Table is amended by adding the following underlined 
language, and renumbering accordingly: 
 

TTAABBLLEE  44..11..11::  SSUUMMMMAARRYY  UUSSEE  TTAABBLLEE  
PROPOSED UDO PROCEDURE: Z = Zoning Compliance Permit;      U = Use Permit;      MP = Allowed with Master Plan;       blank cell = Prohibited 

ZONING DISTRICT (CURRENT DISTRICT IN PARENTHESIS)  
[NOTE: OVERLAY OR SUB-DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS MAY FURTHER LIMIT USES] 

USE 
CATEGORY USE TYPE 

R
C

  

A
G

  

S
F

M
  

S
F

O
  

S
F

R
  

S
F

I 

M
X

R
  

G
B

  

L
B

  

C
C

 

V
C

 

L
I  

H
I  

P
D

-R
 

P
D

-M
 

P
D

-O
 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 R
E

Q
. 

(4
.2

._
__

) 

COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 
Electronic Gaming Operations         Z         4.F.1 

Fitness center       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  

Recreation, indoor       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  
Recreation / 
Entertainm
ent, Indoor Theater       Z Z Z Z Z   MP MP MP  

 
Item 2: That Section 4.2.4 Commercial Uses is amended by adding the following underlined 
language, and renumbering accordingly: 

F.  Recreation/Entertainment, Indoor 

 (1)  Electronic Gaming Operations 
Electronic gaming operations shall comply with the following standards: 

(a) General Requirements 

(i) No electronic gaming operation shall be conducted as a 
principle use, but only as an accessory use to a retail or 
entertainment use, or collocated group of uses, to which it is, in 
the determination of the Director of Planning or his designee, 

14



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 10 of 18 
 

reasonably related and complementary.  In making his 
determination, the Director or designee shall consider the size 
and nature of the proposed internet sweepstake café or 
electronic gaming operation, relative to the host principle use.  

 

The above language was submitted under the old UDO.  To make it 
compatible with the new UDO, staff is recommending the standard be 
written as: 

All electronic gaming operations shall be in conjunction with a principle 
retail sales establishment or entertainment use, or collocated group of 
uses, to which it is, in the determination of the Planning Director, 
reasonably related and complementary.  In making his determination, 
the Planning Director shall consider the size and nature of the proposed 
internet sweepstake café or electronic gaming operation, relative to the 
retail sales establishment or entertainment use.  

 

(ii) In no case shall the gaming area of such café or operation 
occupy an area greater than 30% of the square footage of the 
area occupied by the principal use(s).  For purposes of this 
ordinance, “gaming area” shall mean the floor area containing 
the gaming terminals, associated seating, kiosk(s) or counter(s) 
where the person using the terminal pays to do so, together 
with the floor space separating these components from one 
another and providing for passage and circulation.  

(iii) The gross floor area of the gaming area, as defined in the 
foregoing, shall be not less than 15 square feet per gaming 
terminal.  

(iv) Each such electronic gaming operation shall be limited to a 
maximum of 100 gaming terminals, regardless of the size of the 
property or building(s) containing the operation and its host 
principle use.  

(b) Operation Requirements 

(i) Applicant shall pay an application fee of $150 for each proposed 
gaming terminal in order to obtain a permit.   

(ii) Operating hours shall be limited to 8:00am to 1:00 am Monday 
through Friday, 8:00am to 2:00am on Saturdays, and 12:00 pm 
to 1:00 am on Sundays.  “Soft Closes” are allowed in which 
patrons who entered the business prior to closing are allowed 
to play for an additional hour after closing.  No patron are 
allowed to enter the business after closing.  

(iii) There shall be no alcohol sold, provided, or consumed with the 
gaming area.  

(iv) The establishment shall be restricted to patrons and employees 
at least 18 years of age.   

(iv) No firearms are allowed inside any gaming area, except by 
sworn law enforcement officials or security employees.  

15



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 11 of 18 
 

 

Item 3: That Table 5.1.3.C: Minimum Off-Street Parking Standards is amended by adding the 
following underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 

TTAABBLLEE  55..11..33..CC::    MMIINNIIMMUUMM  OOFFFF--SSTTRREEEETT  PPAARRKKIINNGG  SSTTAANNDDAARRDDSS  

USE 

CATEGORY 
USE TYPE 

MINIMUM NUMBER 

OF PARKING 

SPACES 
COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

Electronic Gaming Operation 1 per 2 gaming terminals 
Fitness center 1 per every 300 sf 
Recreation, indoor 1 per every 300 sf 

Recreation / 
Entertainment, 
Indoor 

Theater 1 per every 4 seats 
 
Item 4: That Section 10.5: Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined language 
and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
ELECTRONIC GAMING OPERATION  
An Electronic Gaming Operation is any business enterprise where persons utilize electronic machines, 
including sweepstakes, and where cash, merchandise or other items of value are redeemed or otherwise 
distributed, whether or not the value of such distribution is determined by electronic games played or 
by predetermined odds.  This term includes, but is not limited to internet sweepstakes, video 
sweepstakes, electronic gaming operations or cybercafés, who have a finite pool of winners.  This does 
not include any lottery approved by the State of North Carolina.  
 
Item 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 6: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of  
  , 201 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   

16



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 12 of 18 
 

****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

17



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 13 of 18 
 

OPTION 4 – Border Station 
PB 12-01 – 12-03 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement to establish Electronic 
Gaming Operation as a permissible use.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
Note: This proposal has been formatted for the new UDO.  There are no changes to the standards 
as previously written other than formatting. 
 
 

TTAABBLLEE  44..11..11::  SSUUMMMMAARRYY  UUSSEE  TTAABBLLEE  
PROPOSED UDO PROCEDURE: Z = Zoning Compliance Permit;      U = Use Permit;      MP = Allowed with Master Plan;       blank cell = Prohibited 

ZONING DISTRICT (CURRENT DISTRICT IN PARENTHESIS)  
[NOTE: OVERLAY OR SUB-DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS MAY FURTHER LIMIT USES] 

USE 
CATEGORY USE TYPE 

R
C

  

A
G

  

S
F

M
  

S
F

O
  

S
F

R
  

S
F

I 

M
X

R
  

G
B

  

L
B

  

C
C

 

V
C

 

L
I  

H
I  

P
D

-R
 

P
D

-M
 

P
D

-O
 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 R
E

Q
. 

(4
.2

._
__

) 

COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 
Electronic Gaming Operations         Z         4.F.1 

Fitness center       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  

Recreation, indoor       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  
Recreation / 
Entertainm
ent, Indoor Theater       Z Z Z Z Z   MP MP MP  

 
Item 2: That Section 4.2.4 Commercial Uses is amended by adding the following underlined 
language, and renumbering accordingly: 

F.  Recreation/Entertainment, Indoor 

 (1)  Electronic Gaming Operations 
Electronic gaming operations shall comply with the following standards: 

(a) General Requirements 

(i) Each electronic gaming operation shall be limited to a maximum 
of 80 gaming terminals per location, regardless of size.  

 (b) Operation Requirements 

(i) Operating hours shall be limited to 8:00am to 2:00am Sunday 
through Thursday, and not be limited on Friday and Saturday.  

(ii) Any food or beverage served shall be in pre-package containers 
or shall meet the requirements of the Albemarle Regional 
Health Services or appropriate state agency’s regulation.  There 

18



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 14 of 18 
 

shall be no alcohol sold, provided, or consumed on the 
premises.  

(iii) The establishment shall be restricted to patrons and employees 
at least 18 years of age.  

(iv) No firearms are allowed inside an electronic gaming business.  

 

Item 3: That Table 5.1.3.C: Minimum Off-Street Parking Standards is amended by adding the 
following underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 

TTAABBLLEE  55..11..33..CC::    MMIINNIIMMUUMM  OOFFFF--SSTTRREEEETT  PPAARRKKIINNGG  SSTTAANNDDAARRDDSS  

USE 

CATEGORY USE TYPE 
MINIMUM NUMBER 

OF PARKING 

SPACES 
COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

Electronic Gaming Operation 

1 per 2 gaming terminals 
or 1 space per 100 square 
feet of gross floor area, 
whichever is greater.  

Fitness center 1 per every 300 sf 
Recreation, indoor 1 per every 300 sf 

Recreation / 
Entertainment, 
Indoor 

Theater 1 per every 4 seats 
 
Item 4: That Section 10.5: Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined language 
and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
ELECTRONIC GAMING OPERATION  
An Electronic Gaming Operation is any business enterprise where persons utilize electronic machines, 
including sweepstakes, and where cash, merchandise or other items of value are redeemed or otherwise 
distributed, whether or not the value of such distribution is determined by electronic games played or 
by predetermined odds.  This term includes, but is not limited to internet sweepstakes, video 
sweepstakes, electronic gaming operations or cybercafés, who have a finite pool of winners.  This does 
not include any lottery approved by the State of North Carolina.  
 
Item 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 6: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of  
  , 201 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 

19



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 15 of 18 
 

 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 16 of 18 
 

OPTION 5 – The Spot 
PB 12-01 – 12-03 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: 
Development Standards, and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement to establish Electronic 
Gaming Operation as a permissible use.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina that 
the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
Note: This proposal has been formatted for the new UDO.  There are no changes to the standards 
as previously written other than formatting. 
 
 

TTAABBLLEE  44..11..11::  SSUUMMMMAARRYY  UUSSEE  TTAABBLLEE  
PROPOSED UDO PROCEDURE: Z = Zoning Compliance Permit;      U = Use Permit;      MP = Allowed with Master Plan;       blank cell = Prohibited 

ZONING DISTRICT (CURRENT DISTRICT IN PARENTHESIS)  
[NOTE: OVERLAY OR SUB-DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS MAY FURTHER LIMIT USES] 

USE 
CATEGORY USE TYPE 

R
C

  

A
G

  

S
F

M
  

S
F

O
  

S
F

R
  

S
F

I 

M
X

R
  

G
B

  

L
B

  

C
C

 

V
C

 

L
I  

H
I  

P
D

-R
 

P
D

-M
 

P
D

-O
 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 R
E

Q
. 

(4
.2

._
__

) 

COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 
Electronic Gaming Operations         Z         4.F.1 

Fitness center       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  

Recreation, indoor       Z Z Z Z Z Z  MP MP MP  
Recreation / 
Entertainm
ent, Indoor Theater       Z Z Z Z Z   MP MP MP  

 
Item 2: That Section 4.2.4 Commercial Uses is amended by adding the following underlined 
language, and renumbering accordingly: 

F.  Recreation/Entertainment, Indoor 

 (1)  Electronic Gaming Operations 
Electronic gaming operations shall comply with the following standards: 

(a) General Requirements 

(i) No electronic gaming operation shall be located within 500 feet 
of an existing electronic gaming operation.  The measurement 
of distance shall be a straight line from the closest point of the 
buildings at which the operations are located, not the closest 
point of the unit or space within the buildings at which the 
operations are located.  If more than one electronic gaming 
operation application is submitted for approval within 500 feet 
of an existing or proposed electronic gaming operation, the 
application submitted first will have priority.  

 

21



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 17 of 18 
 

(ii) Each electronic gaming operation shall be limited to a maximum 
of 50 gaming terminals per location, regardless of size.  

 (b) Operation Requirements 

(i) The establishment shall be restricted to patrons and employees 
at least 18 years of age. 

(ii) There shall be no alcohol sold, provided, or consumed on the 
premises.  

(iii) No firearms are allowed inside an electronic gaming business.  

 

Item 3: That Table 5.1.3.C: Minimum Off-Street Parking Standards is amended by adding the 
following underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 

TTAABBLLEE  55..11..33..CC::    MMIINNIIMMUUMM  OOFFFF--SSTTRREEEETT  PPAARRKKIINNGG  SSTTAANNDDAARRDDSS  

USE 

CATEGORY 
USE TYPE 

MINIMUM NUMBER 

OF PARKING 

SPACES 
COMMERCIAL USE CLASSIFICATION 

Electronic Gaming Operation 1 per 4 gaming terminals  
Fitness center 1 per every 300 sf 
Recreation, indoor 1 per every 300 sf 

Recreation / 
Entertainment, 
Indoor 

Theater 1 per every 4 seats 
 
Item 4: That Section 10.5: Definitions is amended by adding the following underlined language 
and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
ELECTRONIC GAMING OPERATION  
An Electronic Gaming Operation is any business enterprise where persons utilize electronic machines, 
including sweepstakes, and where cash, merchandise or other items of value are redeemed or otherwise 
distributed, whether or not the value of such distribution is determined by electronic games played or 
by predetermined odds.  This term includes, but is not limited to internet sweepstakes, video 
sweepstakes, electronic gaming operations or cybercafés, who have a finite pool of winners.  This does 
not include any lottery approved by the State of North Carolina.  
 
Item 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining 
provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 6: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of  
  , 201 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 

22



PB 12-01 – 12-03  
Electronic Gaming Operation (Internet Sweepstakes) Text Amendment 

Page 18 of 18 
 

 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 
 
 
 
 

23



Tulls Creek

M
ar

lin

D
olphin

Pike

S
ai

lfi
sh

Cobia

Bass
Croaker

Trout

Shark
Perch

Drumm

Porpoise

Barracuda

Flounder

Old Tulls Creek

Elizabeth Canal

M
ississippi Canal

NO WAKE ZONE from this
point to boat ramp

Tulls Bay

Boat Ramp

24



NORTH  CAROLINA  WILDLIFE  RESOURCES  COMMISSION 

Recommendation  for  Local  Boating  Regulations  and  Application 
for  Placement  of  Markers  Under  the  Uniform  Waterway  Marker  System 

on  Navigable  Waters  of  the  United  States 
l .   Governmental  Unit       Currituck County      Date April 15, 2013     
      Mailing  Address  153 Courthouse Road, Currituck, NC 27929 Phone  No . 252-232-2075  
2 .   In  accordance  with  G . S .   175A-15 ,   the  above-named  local  governing  unit hereby  recommends  to  

the  North  Carolina  Wildlife  Resources  Commission the  promulgation  of  special  rules  and  regulations  
with  reference  to the  safe  and  reasonable  operation  of  vessels  applicable  to  the  waters  
of  Tull’s Bay Colony,         

       located  in  Currituck   County ,   the  pertinent  substance  of  which 
       regulations   is  as  follows : 
 

 To Extend the “No Wake” Zone in Tull’s Bay Colony to include the entire length of the canal leading  
from the Mississippi Canal to the Northwest River and the entirety of the Mississippi Canal    
 

3.   Enclosed  herewith  are  the  following : 
      A.     A  certified  copy  of  the  resolution  of  the  above -named  governmental unit : 
 (1)   requesting  the  special  rules  and  regulations  for  the  waters named  in  Item  2 ,   and 

(2)   stating  that  public  notice  was  given  of  the  intention  to  make application  to  the  Wildlife  
Resources  Commission  for  the  regulations  which  are  being  proposed. 

       B.     Two  copies  of  a  map  of  the  waters  concerned  showing  the  exact location  and  type  of  each  
waterway  marker  which  will  be  necessary to  the  enforcement  of  the  proposed  regulations . 

       C .     Two  copies  of  a  scale  drawing  of  each  type  of  waterway  marker  so necessitated. 
 4 .   Each  waterway  marker  required  will  comply  in  color ,   size ,   shape ,   and structural  design  with  the  

Uniform  Waterway  Marker  System  and  the supplementary  standards  for  such  markers  adopted  by  
the  North  Carolina Wildlife  Resources  Commission  pursuant  thereto.     No  other  waterway markers  
will  be  placed  or  allowed  to  remain  in  waters  in  which  the Uniform  Waterway  Marker  System  has  
been  fully  implemented  without approval  of  the  Wildlife  Resources  Commission. 

 5 .   It  is  understood  that ,   if  the  regulations  hereby  recommended  are  promulgated  by  the  North  
Carolina  Wildlife  Resources  Commission ,  placement  of the  waterway  markers  necessary  to  
enforcement  thereof  must  be  approved by  the  United  States  Coast  Guard  and  the  U.   S .  Army  
Corps  of  Engineers . 

        Currituck County 
           Governmental  Unit 
     

By:          
Chairman, Currituck County Board of Commissioners 

25



RESOLUTION 

FOR 

“NO WAKE” SIGNS 

TULL’S BAY COLONY 

 

WHEREAS, under authority of North Carolina General Statutes Section 15A NCAC 10-F.0340 of the North 
Carolina Administrative Code any subdivision of the State of North Carolina may at any time, after public 
notice, make formal application to the NC Wildlife Resources Commission for special rules and 
regulation with reference to the safe and reasonable operation of vessels of any water within its 
territorial limits; and 

WHEREAS, Currituck County has given public notice of its intention to make a formal application to the 
Wildlife Resources Commission for special rules and regulation with reference to the safe and 
reasonable operation of vessels at Tull’s Bay Colony in Moyock, North Carolina, located in Currituck 
County, the pertinent substance of which proposed regulations is as follows: 

To extend the “No Wake” Zone in Tull’s Bay Colony to include the entire length of the canal leading from 
the Mississippi Canal to the Northwest River and the entirety of the Mississippi Canal. 

ADOPTED, this the 6thth day of May , 2013. 

ATTEST:       __________________________ 

_______________________    S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 

Gwen H. Keene, CMC 

Clerk to the Board 

26



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE: May 6, 2013 
PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours LLC 

 
ITEM:   PB13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours LLC - Outdoor Tour Operator 
 
LOCATION:  817B Ocean Trail 

TAX ID: 116H-000-817B-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Monteray Shores PUD Allocation: GB - General Business    
  
PRESENT USE: Retail 
 
OWNER:  Marc Petit 
   817B Ocean Trail 
   Corolla, NC 27927 
 
APPLICANT:  Bob White 
   1159 H Austin Street 
   Corolla, NC 27927 
  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Commercial Zoned GB  
SOUTH Residential Zoned SFO 
EAST:  Residential Zoned SFO 
WEST: Commercial Zoned GB 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Corolla subarea. 
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

a. The applicant seeks a Use Permit for Outdoor Tour Operator for three 15-
passenger vehicles.  

b. The applicant currently operates three Outdoor Tour Companies. 
c. The applicant is proposing to move the operations of Bob’s Wild Horse Tours, LLC 

from the Inn at Corolla Light to the new location in Monteray Plaza.  With the 
move, the applicant would like to increase the number of vehicles operated by 
Bob’s Wild Horse Tours from one to three.   

d. The applicant intends to decrease the number of tour vehicles operating at Beach 
Jeeps in Corolla Light Town Center from five to three in an effort to comply with 
the intent of the Outdoor Tour Operator ordinance to reduce the overall number of 
vehicles.  In order to make that binding, the applicant has been directed to amend 
the existing special use permit for the Beach Jeeps property. 

 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

 
PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours LLC 

Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator 
Page 1 of 7 

27



 A use permit shall be approved on a finding the applicant demonstrates the proposed use 
will: 

 
1. Not endanger the public health or safety 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
b. Adequate parking is available per the UDO standard for Shopping Centers. 

 
2. Not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in harmony with the 

area in which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 

a. The use is located in an existing shopping center.   
b. There are no proposed changes to the site. 
 

3. Be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan. 
Suggested Findings: 

a. The Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service within the Corolla subarea. The 
proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 

 
Policy ED1: new and expanding industries and businesses should be especially 
encouraged that: 1) diversify the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly 
skilled labor force, and 3) are compatible with the environmental quality and 
natural amenity-based economy of Currituck County. 
 
Policy HP3: Development of the tourism and educational potential of the area's 
architectural, historic and cultural resources shall be encouraged. 

 
4. Not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including, but not 

limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public 
facilities are adequate. 
Suggested Findings: 

a. The use should not have an impact on the county’s ability to provide adequate 
public facilities. 

 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
CONDITIONAL APPROVAL subject to the following: 
 

1. An Outdoor Tour Operator license is required per Chapter 8: Article IV of the 
Currituck County Code of Ordinances.  

2. The applicant shall amend special use permit PB10-02 Beach Jeeps to three total tour 
vehicles. 

3. Tour vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that clearly display the 
company name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of four inches. 

4. When not in use, tour vehicles shall be parked in a properly marked space toward the 
rear of the principle structure to improve traffic flow and preserve roadside 
aesthetics.  

5. Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: Article II. 
Beaches and all other applicable provisions of the Currituck County Code of 
Ordinances. Tours shall also operate in accordance with all State and Federal laws. 

 
PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours LLC 

Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator 
Page 2 of 7 

28



6. Vehicles held in reserve in the event of inclement weather or breakdowns may be used 
as long as the parking requirements and all other conditions of this permit are met.  
Reserve vehicles must be stored at an approved location.  

7. This use permit, if issued, shall be reviewed administratively on an annual basis and a 
report shall be filed with the Currituck County Board of Commissioners detailing the 
nature of any complaints received by the Planning Department.  At the discretion of 
the Code Enforcement Officer or Board of Commissioners, the use permit shall be 
subject to revocation or modification by the permit issuing authority following a public 
hearing. 

8. This use permit, if issued, shall be applicable to the specific property for which it is 
issued; comments in the application narrative relating to other use permits may be 
addressed by amending the specific use permits for those properties.  

9. No unattended vehicles are to encumber the full width of the fire apparatus access 
lanes located to the front or rear of the structure. 

 
IV:  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Mr. Craddock moved to approved PB 13-04 with the findings of fact and staff 
recommendations included in the case analysis and the following conditions: 

• Contingent upon the applicant submitting an application to staff to amend the 
special use permit for the Beach Jeep property. 

 
Mr. Cartwright seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 

THE APPLICATION AND RELATED MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE COUNTY’S WEBSITE:   
 

Board of Commissioners:  www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm 
 
 

 
PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours LLC 

Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator 
Page 3 of 7 

29

http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm


PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (4-9-13) 
Mr. White provided an overview of the tour operation, number of tour vehicles, and the locations 
of the tour operations. Mr. White stated he has prepared the application to amend the existing 
special use permit for the Beach Jeeps property and will be bringing it to staff. 
 
Mr. Wright stated that Mr. White should have amended the special use permit for Beach Jeeps 
before coming to the board with this request. 
 
Mr. Cooper stated Mr. White is decreasing the number of tour vehicles operating at Beach Jeeps 
from five to three and increasing the number of vehicles operated by Bob’s Wild Horse Tours 
from one to three.   
 
Mr. Clark read a statement from Lynne Wilson who was not present.  According to PART I. The 
Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, Chapter 8 Article IV. Sec. 8-97. Traffic regulations:  It shall 
be unlawful to operate an outdoor tour operator vehicle in any manner which places the 
occupants of the outdoor tour operator vehicle in immediate harm, or in any manner which 
impedes standard traffic flow on streets, roads or public vehicular areas.  Impeding standard 
traffic flow on streets, roads or public vehicular areas shall include moving slower than the 
standard traffic flow or stopping within or along streets, roads or public vehicular areas for other 
than slowing, yielding or stopping as may be required by motor vehicle law. 
 
Mr. Clark asked Mr. White if he understood what he just read. 
 
Mr. White stated yes. 
 
ACTION 
 
Mr. Craddock moved to approved PB 13-04 with the findings of fact and staff recommendations 
included in the case analysis and the following conditions: 

• Contingent upon the applicant submitting an application to staff to amend the special use 
permit for the Beach Jeep property. 

 
Mr. Cartwright seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

 
PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours LLC 

Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator 
Page 4 of 7 

30



 

 
PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours LLC 

Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator 
Page 5 of 7 

31



 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Bob White, Bob’s Wild Horse Tours, LLC 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: March 21, 2013 
 
Re:  PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours, LLC Use Permit – Outdoor Tour Operator 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received from the TRC.  In order to be scheduled for the April 
9, 2013 Planning Board meeting, please address all comments by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, March 
25, 2013.   
 
Planning, Jennie Newbern 
Reviewed 

1. An Outdoor Tour Operator license is required per Chapter 8: Article IV of the 
Currituck County Code of Ordinances.   

2. Tour vehicles shall be labeled with decals or paint markings that clearly display the 
company name.  Label font size shall be a minimum of four inches. 

3. When not in use, tour vehicles shall be parked in a properly marked space toward the 
rear of the principle structure to improve traffic flow and preserve roadside 
aesthetics.  

 
PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours LLC 

Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator 
Page 6 of 7 

32



4. Tours shall comply with Chapter 3: Article II. Wild Horses, Chapter 10: Article II. 
Beaches and all other applicable provisions of the Currituck County Code of 
Ordinances. Tours shall also operate in accordance with all State and Federal laws. 

5. Vehicles held in reserve in the event of inclement weather or breakdowns may be used 
as long as the parking requirements and all other conditions of this permit are met.  
Reserve vehicles must be stored at an approved location.  

6. If the use permit is issued it shall be reviewed administratively on an annual basis and 
a report shall be filed with the Currituck County Board of Commissioners detailing the 
nature of any complaints received by the Planning Department.  At the discretion of 
the Code Enforcement Officer or Board of Commissioners, the use permit shall be 
subject to revocation or modification by the permit issuing authority following a public 
hearing. 

7. This use permit, if issued, shall be applicable to the specific property for which it is 
issued; comments in the application narrative relating to other use permits may be 
addressed by amending the specific use permits for those properties. 

 
 

Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 
No Comment 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 
No Comment 
 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed  
 
Currituck County Emergency Management, James Mims 
No unattended vehicles are to encumber the full width of the fire apparatus access lanes located 
to the front or rear of the structure.   
 
Corolla Fire and Rescue, Rick Galganski 
couple of questions, 1-when they say parking in front by food lion lot, I hope they are not going 
to park in the firelane. 2- will there be any fuel or hazard materials stored for any type of 
vehicle maintainance. 3- when they are loading and unloading will they be blocking the travel 
lanes in the parking lots either front or back, either way there is not much room for that type of 
operations.  
 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin 
No Comment 
 
Please note that comments were not received from: 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
PB 13-04 Bob’s Wild Horse Tours LLC 

Use Permit - Outdoor Tour Operator 
Page 7 of 7 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 

DATE: May 6, 2013 
PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 

 
ITEM:   PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours request for a Use Permit for an 

Outdoor Tour Operator.  
 

LOCATION: Grandy, 169 Walnut Island Boulevard, Poplar Branch Township. 

TAX ID: 0107-000-0064-0000 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Limited Business (LB)    
  
PRESENT USE: Restaurant/Motel 
 
OWNER:  Barry Nelms 
   Walnut Island Restaurant & Lodge 
   PO Box 507 
   Grandy, NC  27939 
 
APPLICANT:  Todd Cartwright 
   812 Poplar Branch Road 
   Grandy, NC  27939 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Currituck Sound  
SOUTH Residential SFM 
EAST:  Undeveloped SFM 
WEST: Residential SFM 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Grandy subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: 2.46 acres (uplands) 
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

1. The applicant is seeking a use permit to operate boat tours (outdoor tour operator) from 
Walnut Island Restaurant and Lodge in Grandy.   

2. The boat tours will occur Monday through Thursday, 10:00 am until 6:00 pm, from May 
31st through October 31st.  Each tour will last approximately 45 minutes. 

3. All tour patrons will be shuttled to and from various bus stops.   
4. The tour boat will be a 24 foot pontoon boat capable of transporting 16 passengers.   
5. The boat tour route will include the waters around Dews Island and Narrows Island and 

passengers will remain on the tour boat.   
6. The proposed improvements to the site will include a handicap access from the bus stop to 

the tour boat which will require a CAMA permit. 

 
PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 

Use Permit 
Page 1 of 9 

56



7. A community meeting was held on February 11, 2013 at Barry’s Walnut Island with 10 
people in attendance.  Concerns and questions included days of operation and boat 
traffic in the canals in Walnut Island. 

 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested 
findings of fact are outlined as follows: 

 
1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed activities will meet all state and county requirements, including 

handicap accessibility. 
b. Transport vehicles will not encumber the required fire apparatus access or 

required parking. 
 

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with 
the area in which it is located: 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed use is consistent with the current commercial use of the property which 

includes hosting special events.  
b. The proposed use will be in harmony with uses that have historically taken place on the 

property. 
 

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service within the Grandy subarea.   The 
proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 

 
POLICY ED1:  NEW AND EXPANDING INDUSTRIES AND BUSINESSES should be 
especially encouraged that:  1) diversify the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more 
highly skilled labor force, and 3) are compatible with the environmental quality and 
natural amenity-based economy of Currituck County. 

 
4. The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including, 

but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public 
facilities are adequate. 
 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public 

facilities.   

 
PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 

Use Permit 
Page 2 of 9 

57



 
 
 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends 
approval subject to the following permit conditions: 
 

a. Patrons must be part of a bus tour operation.  No on-site tour transactions shall occur 
on the property without providing adequate parking. 

b. The tour boat shall not utilize the canals in Walnut Island.    
 
IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

Mr. Cooper moved to approved PB 13-03 with the findings of fact and staff recommendations 
included in the case analysis and the following conditions: 

• The boat launch site shall be public or if private have written permission from the owner. 
• No entry on private property unless written permission from the owner. 
• Boat tours shall occur May 1 through September 30. 
• A 24 month review period of use permit. 

 
Ms. Bell seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  
   

 
 

THE APPLICATION AND RELATED MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE COUNTY’S WEBSITE:   
 

Board of Commissioners:  www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm 
 
 

 
PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 

Use Permit 
Page 3 of 9 

58

http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-commissioners-minutes-current.cfm


PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (4-9-13) 
Ms. Voliva stated that patrons will be picked up in Corolla and taken to the Weeping Radish 
where they will board smaller vehicles; which to go to the various destinations on the Mainland. 
The destinations include Grave Diggers, Cotton Gin, golf course in Grandy and the boat tour. The 
boat tour requires a use permit and the other stops do not. 
 
The Planning Board discussed the ownership of the boat launch site whether it is public or private, 
alternate launch site off Poplar Branch Road, size of boat and number of passengers, the months 
of operation and how it will affect the migration of the waterfowl, operation dates of jet skies in 
the sound, happy to see business coming to the Mainland, timeframe that use permit be reviewed, 
and clearance of the bridge if high tide.    
 
Ms. Voliva stated the boat launch site is at the end of a right-a-way and it is a state road. 
 
Mr. Clark stated a vessel that carries more than 6 passengers is required to be inspected by the 
United States Coast Guard and the county could require proof of it prior to allowing the vessel to 
operate. 
 
Ms. Voliva stated the applicant is required to meet all federal requirements.  
 
Mr. O’Connell stated he thinks the applicant would be willing to change the months of operation 
to accommodate the duck hunting season and migration of the waterfowl.   
 
Mr. White stated he is not aware that jet skies must operate during specific months.     
 
Ms. Voliva stated the board may want to consider adding a condition to the use permit that the 
launch site be public or if private, permission from the owner.  
 
Mr. Jerry Wright stated that he is part of a partnership which manages the property at Dews 
Island. It is used for duck hunting in the winter and they do utilize it some in the summer. Mr. 
Wright is asking that passengers remain on the boat and not to come on the property unless they 
have written permission from the owner. The Dews Island group has an agreement with the 
Corolla Wild Horse Fund in which they have nine horses on the island which need to be taken into 
consideration. There is a bridge from the Mainland to Dews Island which restricts the size of vessel 
that can pass under it. They may consider putting a no wake zone to slow vessels down and for 
safety purposes. Mr. Wright stated consideration should be taken into the months of operation 
since Dews Island is a sanctuary for the migratory waterfowl. 
 
Mr. White stated this request is a good idea and is in agreement with it. 
  
Ms. MacPherson stated she is the president of the Walnut Island Property Owners Association. Ms. 
MacPherson stated she was pleased to see a condition that no boats will be stored or launched 
from the interior canals. Ms. MacPherson asked for clarification on the size of vehicles to be used 
transporting tourist to various destinations; and where the proposed launch site is located. Ms. 
MacPherson stated they are supportive of the request.  
 
Mr. Tommy Wright was concerned with the months of operation and the effect it would have on 
the migration of the waterfowls. 
 
 
 
 

PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 
Use Permit 
Page 4 of 9 

59



ACTION 
Mr. Cooper moved to approved PB 13-03 with the findings of fact and staff recommendations 
included in the case analysis and the following conditions: 

• The boat launch site shall be public or if private have written permission from the owner. 
• No entry on private property unless written permission from the owner. 
• Boat tours shall occur May 1 through September 30. 
• A 24 month review period of use permit. 

 
Ms. Bell seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

 
PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 

Use Permit 
Page 5 of 9 

60



 

 

 
PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 

Use Permit 
Page 6 of 9 

61



 
 
 

 

 
PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 

Use Permit 
Page 7 of 9 

62



 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Todd Cartwright 
 Kevin O’Connell 
 Barry Nelms 
 
From: Donna Voliva, Planner 
 
Date: March 14, 2013 
 
Re:  Indian Gap Mainland Boat Tours, TRC Comments 
 
 
 
The following comments have been received for the March 20, 2013 TRC meeting.  The use 
permit will require Planning Board recommendation and Board of Commissions action.  The use 
permit comments listed below must be addressed and resubmitted by March 25, 2013 in order to 
be placed on the April 9, 2013 Planning Board meeting.  TRC comments are valid for six months 
from the date of the TRC meeting. 
 
Planning, Donna Voliva  252-232-6032 
Approved with comments 

2. The proposed boat storage area is located at the end of Neals Creek Road.  Commercial 
activities (boat storage, employee parking) are not authorized from property zoned SFM.  
Please consider an alternate location for these activities.  (Staff commentary:  revised plans 
will not include boat storage or parking at this location) 

3. The proposed shuttle stop shall be arranged for the access and safety of pedestrians and 
vehicles from the property and not the right-of-way. (Staff commentary:  revised plans 
relocated the shuttle stop) 

4. Use Permit considerations: 
a. Patrons must be part of a bus tour operation.  No on-site tour transactions shall 

occur on the property without providing adequate parking. 
b. The tour boat shall not utilize the canals in Walnut Island.    

 
Currituck Soil and Water, Mike Doxey 
Currituck County Engineer, Eric Weatherly 252-232-6035 
Approved 
 
Currituck County Utilities, Pat Irwin  
No comment 
 
Currituck County Fire and Emergency Management, James Mims 252-232-6641 
Reviewed 

1. Where will the equipment fueling occur? 
2. All public access piers or piers used for greater than five water vessels are required to be 

within 150 feet for fire apparatus access. 
 
Currituck County Parks and Recreation 
No comment 
 
 

PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 
Use Permit 
Page 8 of 9 

63



Currituck County GIS, Harry Lee 
Reviewed 
 
Currituck County Building Inspections, Spence Castello 252-232-6020 
Denied/Resubmit 

1. Must have accessible route from parking lot to pier.  Must have accessible loading onto 
boat. 

 
NC DENR, Land Quality Section, Pat McClain  252-946-6481 
No comment 

 
NC Division of Coastal Management, Charlan Owens  252-264-3901  
Reviewed 

1. No site or dock improvements are shown on the drawings.  If improvements are proposed, 
any land disturbance within 75 feet of the water will require Division of Coastal 
Management (DCM) review and any modification to boat docking facilities will require a 
CAMA permit. 

2. Please contact Ron Renaldi, DCM Field Representative, if you have any questions.  He can 
be reached at 252-264-3901. 

 
NC State Archaeology, Lawrence Abbot 
No comment 

1. All locations have been disturbed by commercial development.  An archaeological survey 
is not recommended. 

 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 252-232-6603 
Reviewed 
 
The following items are necessary for resubmittal: 

• 3 - full size copies of revised plans. 
• 10 – 11”x17” copies of the plan. 
• 1- 8.5”x11” copy of all revised plans. 
• 1- PDF digital copy of all revised or new documents and plans. 

 
PB 13-03  Indian Gap Mainland Tours 

Use Permit 
Page 9 of 9 

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



SENIOR CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD
3 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Heidi Montalbine District 1 Vance Aydlett 2/20/12 1st       3/1/2015
Unexpired Term

Edith Meekins District 2 David Griggs 7/5/2011            7/20/2013

Rose Wright* District 3 Butch Petrey 3/1/2010 1st       3/15/2013

Doris Ballance District 4 Kevin McCord 9/7/2010 1st        11/1/2013

Rosalie Rose District 5 Marion Gilbert 2/21/2011 2nd        2/1/2014
Unexpired Term

Marcia Steele At-Large Paul Martin 7/5/2011              2/1/2014
Unexpired Term

Joanne DiBello At-Large Paul O'Neal 6/4/2012 4/15/2014

*May be Reappointed

Commissioner Martin

77



GAME COMMISSION
2 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

2nd term
Richard Williams District 1 Vance Aydlett 5/7/2012 6/1/2014

1st term
Jeremy Midgette District 2 David Griggs 5/7/2012 6/1/2014

1st term
Andy Newbern District 3 Butch Petrey 5/7/2012 6/1/2014

2nd term
Clay Cartwright District 4 Kevin McCord 5/16/2011 6/1/2013

3rd term
Willie Austin District 5 Marion Gilbert 6/20/2011 6/1/2013

1st term 
Chandler Sawyer At-Large Paul Martin 5/16/2011 6/1/2013

2nd term 
Jimmy Markert At-Large Paul O'Neal 5/16/2011 6/1/2013

78



79



80



81



Number 2013106

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

51848-599002 JP Knapp and Moy Elem café roofs 126,000$  
51380-425001 Lottery Funds 126,000$  

126,000$  126,000$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

School Construction (51848) - Increase in appropriations to record approval by the NC Department of 
Public Instruction to use lottery funds for the JP Knapp Early College High School and Moyock 
Elementary School cafeteria roof replacements.  These applications were submitted in July 2012 and 
approval was received March 28, 2013.

Net Budget Effect: School Construction Fund (51) - Increased by $126,000.

82

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013107

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

12541-590000 Capital Outlay 18,000$  
12390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 18,000$  

18,000$  18,000$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Fire Services (12541) - Appropriate funds to purchase a Mask Fit Tester, equipment to insure proper 
fit of respirator masks used at fire scenes.

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - Increased by $18,000.

83

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013108

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10750-557700 Crisis Intervention 1,381$  
10752-519600 Daycare 21,000$  
10760-585001 Donations - Currituck Kids 1,500$  
10330-431000 DSS Administration 15,306$  
10330-432800 Daycare 21,000$  
10380-487001 Donations - Currituck Kids 1,500$  
10390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 16,687$  

39,187$  39,187$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Social Services - Administration (10750); Public Assistance (10752); County Assistance (10760) - 
Transfer funds to record Currituck Kids Donation and to adjust to State revised allotments for this fiscal 
year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $36,187.

84

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013109

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10531-514000 Travel 3,500$  
10531-532000 Supplies 1,640$  
10531-590000 Capital Outlay 1,860$  

3,500$  3,500$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Emergency Management (10531) - Replace computer for Emergency Management Director and 
additional funding for EOC supplies.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

85

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013110

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10640-532004 FCS Supplies 1,000$  
10330-449900 Miscellaneous Grants 1,000$  

10640-545000 Contract Services 2,261$  
10640-513000 Utilities 2,261$  

3,261$  3,261$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Cooperative Extension (10640) - To record SHIIP (Seniors’ Health Insurance Information Program) 
grant funds for FY 2013 and for additional costs for landscaping.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,000.

86

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013111

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

68888-532000 Supplies 1,200$  
68888-516000 Repairs & Maintenance 700$  
68888-533800 Chemicals 500$  

1,200$  1,200$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Walnut Island Sewer (68888) - To move funds to purchase a DR/890 Colorimeter needed for testing 
at Waterside Villages.

Net Budget Effect: Walnut Island Sewer Fund (68) - No change.

87

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013112

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10460-531000 Gas 5,500$  
10460-545000 Contract Services 7,000$  
10460-506000 Health Insurance 2,500$  
10460-531400 Equipment fuel 500$  
10460-514000 Travel 1,000$  
10460-514500 Training 500$  
10460-516300 Signs 1,000$  
10460-513000 Utilities 2,500$  
10380-482000 Miscellaneous 1,400$  
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery 3,100$  

12,500$  12,500$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Public Works (10460) - Transfer funds for fuel for the Public Works department necessary for 
operations for the remainder of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $4,500.

88

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013113

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

61818-532000 Supplies 3,000$  
61818-545000 Contract Services 3,000$  

3,000$  3,000$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Mainland Water (61818) - Transfer funds to supplies for operations for the remainder of this fiscal 
year.

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change.

89

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013114

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10750-590000 Capital Outlay 11,897$  
10441-590000 Capital Outlay 11,897$  

11,897$  11,897$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Social Services Administration (10750); Information Technology (10441) - Transfer funds from ITS to 
DSS for replacement computers in DSS in order to utilize cost share funding.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

com
90

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013115

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

52530-590000 Capital Outlay 2,520$  
52330-558701 DPR1 Grant 2,520$  

2,520$  2,520$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Multi-year Grant Fund (52530) - Increase appropriations to record 100% grant funded cabinets for the 
Medical bus.

Net Budget Effect: Multi-year Grant Fund (52) - Increased by $2,520.

91

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013116

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10796-532000 Supplies 3,000$  
10796-516000 Repairs & Maintenance 3,000$  

3,000$  3,000$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Rural Center (10796) - Transfer funds for additional supplies needed for operations for the remainder 
of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

92

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013117

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10420-589000 OSD Reserve 1,000$  
10410-526000 Advertising 1,000$  

1,000$  1,000$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Governing Body (10420); Administration (10410) - Transfer funds due to more retirees than 
anticipated for this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

93

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013118

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10490-513000 Utilities - Other 2,200$  
10490-513003 Utilities - Court Facilities 2,200$  
10490-545003 Contract Services - Court Facilities 12,000$  
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery 12,000$  

14,200$  14,200$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Court Facility Fees (10490) - Increase appropriations for cost incurred when pipe burst in the Judicial 
building and transfer funds for utilities.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $12,000.

94

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013119

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10540-558300 Homeowner's Recovery Fund 1,800$  
10340-457000 Homeowner's Recovery Fund 1,800$  

1,800$  1,800$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Inspections (10540) - Increase appropriations due to increase in building permit purchases.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,800.

95

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013120

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

12546-511006 Telephone & Postage 900$
12546-513006 Utilties 2,300$  
12546-516006 Repairs & Maintenance 5,500$  
12546-516106 Building & Grounds 2,200$  
12546-531006 Gas 800$
12546-532006 Supplies 500$
12546-553006 Dues & Subscriptions 2,900$  
12546-561006 Professional Fees 300$

7,700$  7,700$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Corolla Vol Fire Department (12546) - Transfer funds per request of Corolla VFD.

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change.

96

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013121

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10511-531000 Gas 2,500$  
10511-516000 Repairs & Maintenance 4,000$  
10511-547000 Meals 4,000$  
10511-590000 Capital Outlay 2,500$  

6,500$  6,500$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Jail (10511) - Transfer funds for operations for the remainder of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

97

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013122

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10512-532000 Supplies 600$  
10512-542000 Rabies Clinic 600$

600$  600$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Animal Control (10512) - Transfer funds due to increased participation in rabies clinics.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

98

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number 2013122

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

60808-533201 Lab Test 5,000$  
60808-590001 Capital Outlay 26,000$  
60808-545001 Contracted Services 18,000$  

60808-561001 Professional Services 11,500$  
60808-516001 Repairs and Maint. 17,500$  
60808-533601 System Supplies 7,000$  
60808-533801 Chemicals 9,500$  
60808-514500 Training 2,500$  
60808-514000 Travel 1,000$  

49,000$  49,000$  

Explanation:

\

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Ocean Sands Water and Sewer (60808) - Transfer funds for emergency replacement of pumps and 
for lab fees for the remainder of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

99

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
April 1, 2013 

The Board of Commissioners met at 6:00 p.m. to discuss the proposed 
UDO text regarding internet sweepstakes. After considerable 
discussion, the Board took no action. 

The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly 
scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in the Commissioners 
Meeting Room with the following members present: Chairman Paul 
O’Neal, Vice-Chair Paul Martin, Commissioners Aydlett, Gilbert, 
Griggs, Petrey and McCord.   

A) Invocation
B) Pledge of Allegiance

Reverend Dennis Crehan, Jarvisburg Church of Christ, was present 
to give the invocation. 

C) Approval of Agenda
Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the agenda.  Commissioner 
Martin seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

APPROVED AGENDA 

7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation

B) Pledge of Allegiance

C) Approval of Agenda

D) Public Comment
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please
limit comments to 3 minutes.

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-26 Currituck County:  Request to amend the
Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: Development
Standards and Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement, to clarify waste related
uses and establish standards for Recycling Centers.

B) Public Hearing to name a road located in the Caratoke Forest Subdivision from
west side of Hwy 168, Crawford Township

Administrative Reports 

100



2 April 1, 2013 

A) Tracy Sample, Tax Collector, to review  the County-wide Revaluation

New Business 

A) Consent Agenda:

1. Resolution for Fireworks July 4th, Whalehead Club

2. Budget Amendments

3. Resolution supporting Parks and Recreation Grants

4. Resolution Urging Members of the North Carolina General Assembly and
Governor McCrory to Revisit and Revise S-191

5. Resolution Surplus Property Social Services

6. Approval of March 18, 2013 Minutes

B) Commissioner’s Report
C) County Manager’s Report

Closed Session 

According to G.S. 143-318.11(3) to consult with an attorney in order to preserve the 
attorney-client privilege, to receive advice from and give direction to the County 
attorney in the matter of Etheridge v. Currituck County.  

Adjourn 

D) Public Comment
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular
agenda; please limit comments to 3 minutes.

Chairman O’Neal opened the public comment period.  There being 
no comments, he closed the public comment period. 

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 12-26 Currituck County:
Request to amend the Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 
4: Use Standards, Chapter 5: Development Standards and
Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement, to clarify waste 
related uses and establish standards for Recycling Centers.

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

Based on information gathered at the Board of Commissioners’ 
March 4th work session, staff has updated a proposal that would 
clarify waste related uses and establish standards for Recycling 
Centers.  This proposal separates the current use of ‘Recycling 
Center’ into two distinct uses: ‘Recycling Center, Processing’, 

101



3 April 1, 2013 

and ‘Recycling Center, Transfer’; while keeping ‘Salvage and 
Junk Yard’ as one use.  

This proposal provides the Board options for how to regulate 
Recycling Centers.  Those options include permit and building 
requirements.  

Also proposed are modifications to the Use Table, use standards, 
and parking standards.  Staff used other zoning ordinances, the 
North Carolina General Statutes, and discussion with Bissell 
Professional Group, to create the definitions and standards.  

Currently, the standards in the UDO do not clearly distinguish a 
recycling center from a salvage/junk yard.  This is because of 
two main reasons: 1. the uses are both similar in the fact that 
they actively recycle materials; and 2. the uses are separated 
based on materials used.  For example, a recycling center 
processes “recyclable and recoverable materials”, while a 
salvage/junk yard processes “metals, wood, slush, lumber, glass, 
paper, rags, cloth,… building material” etc.  The materials 
processed at salvage/junk yard could also be considered a 
recyclable material and processed at a recycling center.  So 
what is the true difference between the two uses? And why does 
the UDO allow recycling center to be approved administratively 
with a 250 foot setback, and a salvage/junk yard to be approved 
by the BOC with a 1,000 foot setback?    

Staff’s proposal would answer the questions above.  The 
difference between the uses is not what materials are used, 
since they both actively recycle them, but that recycling 
centers are typically indoor operations and salvage/junk yards 
are outdoor operations.  The recycling center would have lesser 
zoning restrictions because the building would mitigate impacts 
to adjacent properties (appearance, noise, smell, etc.).  

Staff has applied the UDO so that recycling centers can 
currently only use single stream recyclables (household items 
like newspapers and milk jugs) and not scrap metal or 
construction and demolition materials (which are processed at a 
salvage/junk yard).  However, this proposal would allow similar 
materials to be processed at both recycling centers and 
salvage/junk yards, while distinguishing the uses through 
development standards.  Under no circumstances can recycling 
centers or salvage/junk yards accept or process solid, 
hazardous, toxic, or biodegradable waste. 

102



4 April 1, 2013 

Staff presented the previous proposal at the December Planning 
Board meeting.  The Planning Board recommended approval at their 
January 8, 2013 meeting as written, but with a change to 
‘Recycling Center, Transfer’ requirement of a fully enclosed 
building to a 3-sided building. Motion carried unanimously.  

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett questioned the construction debris and odor 
at the site. 

Commissioner Griggs, questioned the garbage that would be 
created and opposed expanding the building. 

Commissioner Martin stated that the setbacks were not adequate. 

Commissioner Petrey also commented on the garbage and odor. 

H.D. Newbern, Aydlett, stated that the setback should be more 
than 250 ft. 

James Shawback, Bay Disposal, in Suffolk, Va., stated he would 
answer any questions the Board may have. 

Commissioner Petrey, requested him to explain his procedures. 

Mike Norris, property owner and Manager of Bay Disposal, stated 
that he would bring jobs to the county and was running a clean 
operation. 

Chairman O’Neal stated that having a building would be better 
than what they have now. 

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the 
public hearing. 

Commissioner Griggs moved to deny request and not allow 
expansion and not to change the definitions.  Commissioner 
Martin seconded the motion.  Motion failed with Commissioners 
Aydlett, Petrey, Gilbert and McCord voting no. 

103



5 April 1, 2013 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve the request as submitted.  
Commissioner McCord seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Chairman O’Neal stated that they will come back to the Board for 
their Special Use Permit. 

B) Public Hearing to name a road located in the Caratoke
Forest Subdivision from west side of Hwy 168, Crawford 
Township

Ike McRee, County Attorney, stated that the applicant Kevin 
Baiko, would like to name a street in the Caratoke Forest 
Subdivision next to Laurel Woods Subdivision.  The name 
requested is Enchanted Forest Drive. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing. There being no 
comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve the name Enchanted Forest 
Drive.  Commissioner Petrey seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 

Administrative Reports 

A) Tracy Sample, Tax Collector, to review  the County-wide
Revaluation

Tracy Sample, Tax Collector, reviewed the new preliminary 2013 
tax base and how it compares to last year, along with the 
percentage change by geographical areas.  He also provided 
information about the appeals process and further explained the 
breakdown of the County Tax Base between the Outer Banks and the 
Mainland. 

Mr. Sample stated that the new tax rate will be available during 
the budget process. 

New Business 

A) Consent Agenda:
1. Resolution for Fireworks July 4th, Whalehead Club

104



6 April 1, 2013 

2. Budget Amendments
3. Resolution supporting Parks and Recreation Grants
4. Resolution Urging Members of the North Carolina

General Assembly and Governor McCrory to Revisit and
Revise S-191

5. Resolution Surplus Property Social Services
6. Approval of March 18, 2013 Minutes

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve.  Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

RESOLUTION 
APPROVING THE EXHIBITION, USE AND DISCHARGE OF 

PYROTECHNICS AT THE WHALEHEAD CLUB IN  
COROLLA, NORTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §14-410 and §14-413, a display operator 
that will exhibit, use or discharge pyrotechnics at a public exhibition must receive 
written authority for such public exhibition from the board of commissioners for a 
county; and 

WHEREAS, a display operator must provide proof of insurance in the amount of at 
least $500,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, Dominion Fireworks, Inc. is under contract with Currituck County to 
provide an exhibition of fireworks at the county’s property known as The Whalehead 
Club in Corolla, North Carolina, on July 4, 2013, which will be a public exhibition, 
and Dominion Fireworks, Inc. has provided a certificate of insurance evidencing 
insurance coverage in an amount in excess of $500,000.00. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for 
Currituck County, North Carolina that:  

Section 1. Dominion Fireworks, Inc. is authorized to exhibit, use or discharge 
pyrotechnics for public exhibition at that property known as The Whalehead Club in 
Corolla, North Carolina on July 4, 2013. 

105



7 April 1, 2013 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

10512-511010 Data Transmission  $          260 
10512-542000 Rabies Clinic  $          600 
10512-532000 Supplies  $        860 

 $          860  $        860 

       Explanation: Animal Control (10512) - Transfer funds for MCT Aircards and rabies clinic for 
Animal Control. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

60808-511000 Telephone & Postage - Water  $       1,700 
60808-511001 Telephone & Postage - Sewer  $       1,500 
60808-526000 Advertising  $          171 
60808-532001 Supplies - Sewer  $            10,000 
60808-533201 Lab Tests - Sewer  $       6,500 
60808-533601 System Supplies - Sewer  $            15,000 
60808-561001 Professional Services - Sewer  $          16,000 
60808-545001 Contract Services - Sewer  $            8,871 

60808-516001 
Repairs & Maintenance - 
Sewer  $          10,000 

 $            34,871  $          34,871 

       Explanation: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer (60808) - Transfer for operations for the remainder 
of this fiscal year. 

Net Budget Effect: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District Fund (60) - No change. 

106



8 April 1, 2013 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

61818-514500 Training and Education  $          500 
61818-516200 Vehicle Maintenance  $          500 
61818-532000 Supplies  $       3,000 
61818-545000 Contract Services  $       8,700 
61818-545100 Credit Card Fees  $          800 
61818-516000 Repairs & Maintenance  $            3,000 
61818-561000 Professional Services  $            3,000 
61818-590000 Capital Outlay  $            7,500 

 $            13,500  $          13,500 

       Explanation: Mainland Water (61818) - Transfer for operations for the remainder of this fiscal 
year. 

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change. 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

62828-511000 Telephone & Postage  $          100 
62828-545100 Credit Card Fees  $            15 
62828-516000 Maintenance & Repairs  $        115 

 $          115  $        115 

       Explanation: Newtown Road Sewer (62828) - Transfer for operations for the remainder of this 
fiscal year. 

Net Budget Effect: Newtown Road Sewer District Fund (62) - No change. 

107



9 April 1, 2013 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

64848-511010 Data Transmission  $       2,000 
64848-532000 Supplies  $       1,000 
64848-511000 Telephone & Postage  $        600 
64848-513000 Utilities  $            2,400 

 $       3,000  $            3,000 

       Explanation: Maple Commerce Park Sewer (64848) - Transfer for operations for the remainder 
of this fiscal year. 

Net Budget Effect: Maple Commerce Parks (64) - No change. 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

67878-511010 Data Transmission  $          300 
67878-513000 Utilities  $            10,500 
67878-532000 Supplies  $       5,000 
67878-533200 Lab Tests  $       3,500 
67878-545100 Credit Card Fees  $          100 
67878-561000 Professional Services  $          500 
67878-582000 Interest on Debt  $            82,040 
67878-582200 Debt Service  $          46,290 
67360-450500 Administrative Revenue  $          25,000 
67360-470000 Utilities Charges  $          30,650 

 $          101,940  $        101,940 

       Explanation: Moyock Central Sewer System (67878) - Increase appropriation to establish an 
operating budget for the Moyock Central Wastewater system.   This system has 
been operational since January 2013. 

108



10 April 1, 2013 

Net Budget Effect: Moyock Central Sewer System Fund (67) - Increased by $55,650. 

Debit Credit 

 

 

Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account 
Number Account Description Increase Expense 

Decrease 
Expense 

68888-532000 Supplies  $       1,250 
68888-533200 Lab Tests  $       1,500 
68888-561000 Professional Services  $       7,500 
68350-468000 Sale of Fixed Assets  $            1,475 
68360-480700 Penalties & Interest  $        500 

68390-499900 
Fund Balance 
Appropriated  $            6,325 

68888-511000 Telephone & Postage  $        700 
68888-516000 Repairs & Maintenance  $        750 
68888-531000 Gas  $        500 

 $            10,250  $          10,250 

       Explanation: Walnut Island Sewer System (68888) - Increase appropriations for operations for 
the remainder of this fiscal year. 

Net Budget Effect: Walnut Island Sewer District Fund (68) - Increased by $8,300. 

A RESOLUTION TO MAINTAIN AND SUPPORT THE CURRENT 
INTEGRITY AND FUNDING  

FOR THE PARKS AND RECREATION TRUST FUND (PARTF) 

WHEREAS, North Carolina is known for its unique and scenic natural resources and 
opportunities for recreation with a long tradition of its citizens and visitors enjoying parks, 
mountains, rivers, greenways, beaches and more.  Generations of residents and visitors have 
delighted in these landscapes and park facilities; and  

WHEREAS, The Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) was established with bi-
partisan support on July 16, 1994 to fund improvements in the state's park system, to fund grants 
for local governments and to increase the public's access to the state's beaches and coastal 
waterways; and 

109



11 April 1, 2013 

WHEREAS, since its inception, The Parks and Recreation Trust Fund has provided $161 
million via 722 grants to 370 local governments in 99 counties and has been matched with $312 
million of local and private dollars for the purchase of local park land, building and renovation of 
facilities and development of greenways and trails; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina’s population has grown to make it the 10th most populous 
state in the nation with projections for the significant growth to continue in the coming decades, 
and more state and local parks are needed to meet the increased demands; and 

WHEREAS, parks are identified as key contributors to North Carolina’s tourism 
industry that generates nearly $20 billion in annual economic impact; and  

WHEREAS, parks in North Carolina are experiencing record visitation levels including 
over 14.25 million to state parks in both 2011 and 2012; and  

WHEREAS, The Parks and Recreation Trust Fund has leveraged funds that allowed our 
State to acquire land for state parks and state natural areas and protected nearly 83,000 acres and 
made major additions to the Mountains-to-Sea State Trail; and 

WHEREAS, The Parks and Recreation Trust Fund has funded capital improvement 
projects in the state parks such as visitor centers and exhibit halls which provide tremendous 
opportunities to educate students and all citizens about North Carolina’s outstanding natural 
resources, and other capital projects including campgrounds, picnic areas, boating facilities, trails 
and swimming beaches; and local capital projects including construction of community centers, 
athletic fields and greenways; and 

WHEREAS, the annual economic impact to local economies of all tourists visiting the 
state parks system was estimated at more than $400 million in sales and income, as well as 
nearly 5,000 jobs according to a 2008 study. 

WHEREAS, a portion of The Parks and Recreation Trust Fund is designated for the 
Public Beach and Coastal Waterfront Access Program to improve access to beaches and coastal 
waterways by funding public boat ramps and public beaches accesses; and  

WHEREAS, access to parks, recreation facilities and open space provides cost-effective 
opportunities for citizens of all ages to participate in health and wellness activities thereby 
reducing costs associated with obesity, heart disease, diabetes and high blood pressure; and 

WHEREAS, research has documented that structured park and recreational opportunities 
in local communities can prevent crime and provide positive activities and directions for young 
people; and 

WHEREAS, dedicated, recurring funding of The Parks and Recreation Trust Fund 
allows for structured and objective planning and efficient management of the system at both the 
state and local levels for today and future generations; and 

110



12 April 1, 2013 

WHEREAS, the success of The Parks and Recreation Trust Fund is due to the dedicated 
funding source provided by a portion of the deed stamp tax, and is recognized nationally as a 
model for efficiency and accountability; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners does call on the members of the General Assembly to maintain dedicated 
revenues generated by seventy-five cents of the deed stamp tax for The Parks and Recreation 
Trust Fund.   

A RESOLUTION URGING MEMBERS OF THE NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY AND GOVERNOR MCCRORY TO REVISIT AND REVISE THE 

REQUIREMENTS IN S-191 CONCERNING THE APPPOINTMENT OF BOARD 
MEMBERS TO THE LME BOARD 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 191 has been approved and passed into law in the waning hours of the 
2012 Session of the General Assembly; and 

 WHEREAS, the new membership rules for the Boards of Local Management Entities(LMEs) 
limit the required designation to only one county commissioner from the nineteen (19) 
participating counties comprising the EAST CAROLINA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, and limits 
the total membership to twenty-one (21) members with most of the members having to be 
representative of a specific occupation or group; and 

WHEREAS, these new requirements have to be implemented by October 2013; and 

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has the authority to review and modify these requirements 
in the current Session, understanding that counties and the State have a vested interest and 
obligation to provide adequate mental health services and oversight to our citizens in a 
responsible and realistic way; 

NOW,THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Currituck County as a member in the EAST 
CAROLINA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH LME requests that any LME which represents ten 
(10)counties or more be given the option of increasing their Governing Board to a maximum of 
thirty(30)voting members. This would ensure that each county has the ability to appoint a 
Commissioner or their designee to the LME Board. This increased size would also permit the 
appointment of individuals with the additional background and expertise required in SB 191. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of this resolution be sent to the Governor, the 
Secretary of the NC Department of Health and Human Services, the leadership of the NC 
General Assembly, and the House and Senate members of the General Assembly representing 
the EAST CAROLINA BEHAVIORAL HEALTH LME catchment area. 

111



13 April 1, 2013 

R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina during its 
regularly scheduled meeting held on  April 1, 2013 authorized the following, pursuant to GS 
160A and 270(b),that the property listed below for Social Services, be disposed of : 

Asset 2812A-F Stackable Chairs 
Asset 2815 Table 
Asset 3386 Fellows Power Shred 400 Shredder 

B) Commissioner’s Report

Commissioner Gilbert requested a meeting with DOT and Ranchland 
property owners to discuss drainage. 

C) County Manager’s Report
No comments

Closed Session 
According to G.S. 143-318.11(3) to consult with an attorney in 
order to preserve the attorney-client privilege, to receive 
advice from and give direction to the County attorney in the 
matter of Etheridge v. Currituck County.  

Chairman O’Neal moved to go into closed session as stated above. 
Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Adjourn 

After reconvening from closed session, no action was taken. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

112



113



Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
County Plan 

 Currituck County 

2013-14 

Table of Contents 

I. Executive Summary (Year 1 and subsequent year updates) 

II. JCPC County Recommended Funding Plan with attached Program Descriptions

III. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Organization

IV. County Risk & Needs Assessment Summary with attached Data & Resources

V. Research–Based Programs Summary 

VI. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Action Plan

VII. County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Request for Proposals

VIII. Funding Decisions Summary

114



I.  Executive Summary 
Currituck County  

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
(3rd Year) 

The Currituck County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC), in fulfillment of the duties 
and responsibilities as set forth in the General Statutes of the State of North Carolina, has 
completed the activities required to develop this County Plan for FY 2013-14.   

The JCPC has identified the issues and factors which have an influence and impact upon 
delinquent youth, at-risk youth, and their families in Currituck County.  Further, the JCPC 
has identified the strategies and services most likely to reduce/prevent delinquent behavior. 

JCPC Action Plan:  A JCPC Action Plan to impact delinquent behavior has been developed. 
The JCPC proposes to:  

Prevent and reduce delinquent behavior 
Increase public awareness about delinquency prevention 
Provide a continuum of community resources to address delinquent and at-risk behavior 

Priorities for Funding:  Through a risk & needs assessment and a resource assessment, the 
JCPC has determined that the following services are needed to reduce/prevent delinquency 
in Currituck County.   

1. Teen Court
2. Mentoring
3. Restitution/Community Service
4. Parent/Family Skills
5. Tutoring/Academic Enhancement Services
6. Interpersonal Skills
7. Substance Abuse Treatment
8. Psychological Assessments
9. Counseling
10. Home-Based Family Counseling

Monitoring and Evaluation:  Each program funded in the past year by the JCPC has been 
monitored, and the forms and recommendations are on file in the DJJ Area Office.  The 
monitoring results and program outcomes and evaluations were considered in making 
funding allocation decisions. Monitoring results are on file for the following programs: 

• PASS Counseling Program – continued funding without conditions
• Teen Court – continued funding without conditions
• Restitution/Community Service – continued funding without conditions

Funding Recommendations: The JCPC published the Request for Proposals beginning 
January 14, 2013, with program applications due March 1, 2013 by noon.  Furthermore, the 

115



JCPC exceeded the 30-day minimum publication requirement by nearly two weeks. A 
district wide grant-writing workshop was provided on February 1, 2013 in Edenton. 

The JCPC screened submitted proposals and determined those which best meet advertised 
needed services.   

As required by statute, the JCPC recommends allocation of Juvenile Crime Prevention 
Funds to the following Programs in the amounts specified below for FY 2013-14: 

Program 
Recommendations 

DJJDP 
Funding 

Local 
Cash 
Match 

Total 

JCPC Administrative 
Certification Funds $15,000 $15,000 

$43,967 $13,190 $57,157 PASS with 
Teen Court 
component $14,949 $4,485 $19,434 

Restitution $7,914 $2,374 $10,288 

Program descriptions and service statistics are attached to the JCPC Funding Plan in 
Section II. 

116



Currituck 

II. JCPC County Funding Plan

Revised Available Funds: $81,830  Local Match: $20,049  Rate: 30% 

Program Descriptions and Service Statistics are included as an attachment to this funding plan. 

LOCAL FUNDING OTHER OTHER 

# Program Provider JCPC 
Funding 

Local 
Cash 
Match 

Local In-
Kind 

State/ 
Federal 

Funds Total 

1 JCPC Certification $15,000 $15,000 

2 PASS $58,916 $17,675 $76,591 

3 Restitution $7,914 $2,374 $10,288 

4 $0 

5 $0 

6 $0 

7 $0 

8 $0 

9 $0 

10 $0 

TOTALS: $81,830 $20,049 $0 $0 $0 $101,879 

The above plan was derived through a planning process by the Currituck County 

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council and represents the County’s Plan for use of these funds in 
FY 2013-14 

117



Section II(a)  Funded Program Descriptions 

Program Name/Component Type(s)/Sponsoring Agency: 

Currituck Restitution/Currituck County 

List the priority risk/needs and protective factors addressed by this program: 
Early and persistent delinquent behavior 

Protective factor:  High accountability 

Provide a brief description of each program component: 
Provides the means whereby victims of juvenile crime are compensated for their losses.  Also 
provides worksite placements for juveniles ordered to perform community service, or those 
referred under a diversion plan or contract. 

Funded Program Description 

Program Name/Component Type(s)/Sponsoring Agency: 

Teen Court/Currituck County Schools 

List the priority risk/needs and protective factors addressed by this program: 
Negative peer associations 

Protective factor:  Positive peer associations 

Provide a brief description of each program component: 
Teen court provides the first time non-violent offender admitting guilt a diversion resource.  The 
qualifying defendant appears before a jury of his/her peers to receive a constructive sentence.  
He/she must then agree to serve at least one jury duty as part of the constructive sentence.  
Currituck County's teen court is taught in high school as an elective course. 

118



Funded Program Descriptions (cont.) 

Program Name/Component Type(s)/Sponsoring Agency: 

Partnership for Adolescent Support Services/ Individual Counseling/ 
Currituck Co. Schools 

List the priority risk/needs and protective factors addressed by this program: 
Negative peer associations 
Serious behavior problems in school 
Protective factor:  School motivation and bonding; positive peer associations 

Provide a brief description of each program component: 
PASS provides individual counseling to court referred juveniles.  The program offers cognitive 
behavioral training in order to provide participants with replacement behaviors and help them 
stay on the right track in school.  Also has a contract with a family therapist for specific referrals. 

New for this coming year is the addition of an evidence-based Parent/Family Skill Building 
service, Strengthening Families. 

119



Program Services 2011-12   

    

Currituck County Comprehensive Strategy   

  Delinquency Prevention   Court Supervision     

All Youth Youth At Greatest Risk Immediate 
Intervention 

  Graduated Sanctions   

2010-11   

NCJOIN 
& 
ALLIES 
Data School Year   

July 1, 
2011 - 
June 30, 
2012 

  

  

 
County 
Youth 
ages  
10-17 

Short & Long 
Term  
Out-of-School 
Suspension 

 
JCPC Non-
Court 
Admissions 

 
Juveniles 
at Intake  

 
Diversion 
Plans/ 
Contracts 

 
Juveniles 
Apprvd 
for Court 

 
Adjudi- 
cated 
Juveniles 

 
Protective 
Supervision 

 
Supervised 
Probation 

 
Deten- 
tion  
Adms 

 
YDC 
Commitments 

 
Post 
Release 
Supvs 

  
  2,672 595 ST/3 LT   58 29 26 24 1 19 5 0 0   
      
      

P
ro

te
ct

iv
e
 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
e
d
 

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 

  

JCPC Youth Admitted 2011-2012 

Y
o
u
th

  
A

t-
R

is
k
 

C
o
u
rt

 C
o
u
n
s
e
lo

r 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
tio

n
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S

ta
tu

s 
U

n
k
n
o
w

n
 

In
ta

k
e
/ 

D
iv

e
rt

e
d
 

P
e
tit

io
n
 F

ile
d
 

U
n
d
is

c
ip

lin
e
d
 

A
d
ju

d
ic

a
te

d
 

Supervision   

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 
C

o
m

m
itm

e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
rt

 
(D

e
fe

rr
e
d
) 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 T

o
ta

ls
 

 
Teen Court – Diversion 

 
5 

 
1 

   
9 

 
1 

               
16 

 
Restitution/Community Service – Diversion, 
Level I and II dispositional alternative 

  
14 

   
2 

    
13 

    
29 

 
Partnership of Adolescent Support 
Services (PASS) – Diversion, Level I and II 
dispositional alternative 

  
1 

  
12 

 
1 

    
4 

    
18 

              
63 

120



III. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Organization

Name Organization Title 

Chairperson 
Jennifer Goscinski School Counselor CCMS 

Vice-
Chairperson 

Ray Matusko 
Administrative Office of 

the Courts 
Clerk 

Secretary 
Bobbi Blount 

Currituck County 
Schools 

Prog. Assistant 

Treasurer 
Sandra Hill Currituck County Finance Officer 

Assessment 
Committee 
Chairperson 

Full Council 

Funding 
Committee 
Chairperson 

Sandra Hill Currituck County Finance Officer 

Number of 
members: 

26 

List meeting dates during the current fiscal year and identify the number of JCPC 
members in attendance for each. 

Meeting Date 
Number of Members in 

Attendance 
Quorum Present?  Yes/No 

September 10 17 yes 

October 8 15 yes 

November no meeting 

December 10 9 no 

January 14 16 yes 

February 11 16 yes 

March 11 14 yes 

April 8 scheduled 

May 13 scheduled 

121



IV. RISK & NEEDS ASSESSMENT SUMMARY REPORT

I. Risk Assessment Summary 
II. Needs Assessment Summary
III. Resource Assessment Summary
IV. Summary of Gaps and Barriers in the Community Continuum
V. Proposed Priority Services for Funding

Part I.  Risk 

The JCPC reviewed data gleaned from the Juvenile Risk Assessment instrument 
administered by Juvenile Court Counselors after juveniles are referred with a complaint 
alleging that a delinquent act has occurred and prior to adjudication of the juvenile.  The 
Juvenile Risk Assessment is an instrument used to predict the likelihood of the juvenile 
being involved in future delinquent behavior.  For some youth, some of the individual item 
ratings may be heavily dependent upon information reported by the juvenile or the parent(s). 
For these items (represented with a star next to them), there is a likelihood of under-
reporting the incidence of a particular behavior and the actual incidence may be higher than 
suggested by these figures.  In those cases, the figure should be interpreted as a measure 
of the minimum level of occurrence. 

See attached Risk Comparison data. 

Part II.  Needs 

The JCPC also reviewed data gleaned from the Juvenile Needs Assessment instrument 
administered by Juvenile Court Counselors prior to court disposition of a juvenile and at 
subsequent 90-day intervals through the period of court supervision.  The Juvenile Needs 
Assessment is an instrument used to examine a youth’s needs in the various domains of his 
life:  The Individual Domain, The School Domain, The Peer Domain, and the Community 
Domain.  This instrument was designed to detect service intervention needs as an aid in 
service planning.  As with the Juvenile Risk Assessment, some of the individual item ratings 
may be heavily dependent upon information reported by the juvenile or the parent(s).  For 
these items (represented with a star next to them), there is a likelihood of under-reporting 
the incidence of a particular behavior and the actual incidence may be higher than 
suggested by these figures.  In those cases, the figure should be interpreted as a measure 
of the minimum level of occurrence. 

See attached Needs Comparison data. 

122



Part III.  Summary of the Existing Community Resources 
(See attached Resource Continuum) 

Part IV.  Summary of Gaps and Barriers in the Continuum of Services 

• Geographical challenges – county is long and narrow; separated by water
• Transportation issues
• Connectivity to community resources is limited
• Lack of consistent phone services and permanent addresses for juveniles/families

Part V.  Proposed Priority Services for Funding 

The JCPC compared the services needed to address elevated Juvenile Risk Factors and 
Juvenile Needs with services currently available in the community.  Services which are 
currently available in the community from other resources, and sufficient to meet the needs 
of court involved youth or those youth most at-risk for court involvement are not considered 
as a priority for JCPC funding.    

The JCPC proposed the following services be approved as the funding priorities for 
FY 20013-14 and advertised in the annual Request for Proposal. 

• Teen Court
• Mentoring
• Restitution/Community Service
• Parent/Family Skills
• Tutoring/Academic Enhancement Services
• Interpersonal Skills
• Substance Abuse Treatment
• Psychological Assessments
• Counseling
• Home-Based Family Counseling

See attached Rationale for Advertising in the RFP. 

Also, Section VII.  Request for Proposals 

123



CURRITUCK Juvenile Court Data 

Overall Risk Level: 84.6  % of 52 
 juveniles were 
at low 

 risk of 
reoffending. 

Elevated Risk 

1) Juveniles rejected by pro-social peers;
2) Some SA/needs assessment*; and
3) Moderate behavior problems in school

Overall Needs 
Level: 85.3 % of 68 juveniles had low needs. 

Elevated Needs 

1) Moderate behavior problems in school;
2) Some delinquent peers;
3) Some substance abuse/needs assessment*; and

4) Some family substance/alcohol abuse*

2010-11 School Data 

Statewide: 

There are a total of 16 reportable acts: possession of a controlled substance, possession of a weapon, 
possession of alcoholic beverage, possession of a firearm/explosive, assault on school personnel, assault 
with weapon, assault inflicting serious injury, sexual assault, sexual offense, indecent liberties, bomb 
threat, robbery with a weapon, burning of a school building, kidnapping, rape, and death by other than 
natural causes.  Robbery without a weapon was dropped. The number of reportable acts statewide in 
2010-11 was 11657 with 6096 of those occurring at the high school level. 

"Elementary, middle, and high schools differ in the types of acts most frequently reported. Acts most 
frequently reported in elementary school were 1) possession of a weapon excluding firearms, 2) assault 
on school personnel, and 3) possession of a controlled substance. In middle school the order was 1) 
possession of a weapon excluding firearms, 2) possession of a controlled substance, and 3) possession 
of an alcoholic beverage; while in high school the order was 1) Possession of a controlled substance, 2) 
possession of a weapon excluding firearms, and 3) possession of an alcoholic beverage." 

Statewide school data continues to indicate a trend in suspensions where black males in 8th or 9th grade 
were most likely to be out-of-school. Of exceptional students, the "Specific Learning Disabled" group was 
more likely to be suspended.  However, multiple short term suspensions were slightly down over a five-
year period beginning in 2006-07 to 2010-11.  Long-term suspensions and expulsions were down. 

The gender of most out-of-school disciplinary action is statistically significant as it is predominantly male.  
The race is less significant from county to county depending on the demographic.  In the east, suspended 
students in Currituck and Dare counties are more likely to be white with Gates and Perquimans as likely 
to suspend white or black students. 

County: 

In county high schools, the number and rate per 1000 students for reportable acts:  25 with a rate of 
20.89; the state rate is 14.15.  For every minority student suspended out of school, there were seven 
white students suspended. 

The total number of short-term suspensions was 595, long-term 3, and no expulsions.  The number/rate 
per 100 high school students for short-term suspensions was 420 or 35.09 with the state at only 29.00. 

County Drop-Out Information: 

County dropout statistics indicate a rate of 3.16 in 2009-10 to 3.73 in 2010-11; an increase of 20.0%. 

124



125



RISK COMPARISION DATA 2011-12  Currituck County 52 

     Distinct Juveniles 

    
Prior 
Adjudication County State  

    No prior adjudic. 90.4% 79.3% 

Overall Risk County State   
Prior 
Undisciplined 0.0% 2.4% 

Low Risk 84.6% 69.4%  
Prior 1 - 3 
Misdemn 7.7% 12.0% 

Medium Risk 11.5% 23.0%  
Prior F-I Felony, 
A1 1.9% 5.8% 

High Risk 3.8% 7.6%  Prior A-E Felony 0.0% 0.5% 
 

  

 

    

Age at First Complnt County State   
Substance 
Abuse County State 

Age 12 and over 90.4% 85.7%  No known SA 61.5% 71.8% 

Under 12 9.6% 14.3%  Some abuse N/A 28.8% 15.7% 
 
     

Need 
Asst/Treatmt 9.6% 12.5% 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
    

Referrals to Court County State   
School 
Discipline County State 

Current Referral Only 71.2% 62.5%  No problems 32.7% 17.3% 

1 Prior Referral 15.4% 18.1%  Minor problems 1.9% 9.2% 

2-3 Prior Referrals 11.5% 12.2%  
Moderate 
problems 36.5% 28.6% 

4+ Prior Referrals 1.9% 7.2%  Serious problems 28.8% 44.9% 
 

  

 

    

       
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       

126



Peer Group County State Parental Supvs County State 

Good peer group 57.7% 39.4% 
Willing/Able to 
spvs 92.3% 79.6% 

Rejected by peers 40.4% 39.1% Willing/Unable 7.7% 19.0% 

Assc w/ negtv peers 1.9% 16.2% Unwilling/Unable 0.0% 1.4% 

Gang member/assc  0.0% 5.3% 

82.7% had no prior assaults; 94.2% had no prior runaway behaviors. 

127



NEEDS COMPARISION DATA 2011-12 Currituck County 68 

Distinct Juveniles 

(Individual Characteristics) Peers County State 

Good peer support 47.1% 35.8% 

Overall Needs County State Rejected by peers 19.1% 11.8% 

Low Needs 85.3% 64.7% Some del peers 32.4% 32.3% 

Medium Needs 14.7% 31.0% Reg assoc. w/ dels 1.5% 13.9% 

High Needs 0.0% 4.2% Gang member 0.0% 6.1% 

Mental Health County State 

Academic Function County State No MH needs 58.8% 35.5% 

At grade level 100.0% 90.6% MH needs addressed 35.3% 32.9% 

Below grade level 0.0% 9.4% Need more assess 5.9% 31.6% 

School Behavior County State Alcohol/SA County State 

No Problems 25.0% 23.4% No Known substance use 72.1% 70.3% 

Minor Problems 14.7% 12.4% 
Some substance use, need 
further assessment 22.1% 16.2% 

Moderate Problems 26.5% 23.8% 
Substance abuse, assessment 
or treatment needed 5.9% 13.5% 

Serious Problems 33.8% 40.4% 

128



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Family Characteristics)      

    Family Criminality County State 

Domestic Discord County State   No family histx 85.3% 63.5% 

Supportive home 89.7% 76.5%  Has family histx 11.8% 28.8% 

Domestic Discord 8.8% 18.1%  Has family court/gang 2.9% 7.7% 

Domestic Violence 1.5% 5.4%        
 
           

       

       

Parenting Skills County State   Fam SA/Alcohol Use County State 

Inadequate 1.5% 3.8%  No known use 89.7% 89.9% 

Adequate 77.9% 45.0%  
Fam. Uses 
drugs/alcohol 10.3% 10.1% 

 

Marginal  20.6% 51.2% 

 

   
       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

129



Currituck 
County  Resource Continuum - At a 
Glance 

Instructions:  Adjust arrows to cover target populations 

 JCPC funded 

Comprehensive Strategy 

Prevention Graduated Sanctions 

Target Populations 

Program 
Services & 
Structures 
Categories  Available Programs/Services 

All 
Yout

h 

Youth at 
Greatest 

Risk 

Pre-
Adjudicat
ed Youth 

Delinque
nt- Level 
I/ Prot. 

Supervisi
on 

Delinque
nt- Level 
II   Youth 

Delinque
nt- Level 
III  Youth 

Post 
Relea

se 
Youth 

Grades 3-5 Too Good for Drugs 

4-H Programming 

Countywide Recreation 

School Based Tutoring (as needed) 
Northeast Workforce Development 
Board 
YMCA (Site & School-based 
programming) 

Structured 
Activities 

Currituck MS After-School Program 

Teen Court 

Restitution/Community Service 
Restorative 

Services 

130



Currituck County Learning Center & Twilight 
Program Community 

Day 
Programs 

PASS - Assessments 
GAIN - Assessments (Uplift 
Comprehensive) 

Assessmnt 
Services 

Mobile Crisis - Integrated Family Svc 

PASS - Counseling 
PASS - Family Counseling  
(Jessica Heider) 
JJ/MH Partnership (MST Uplift 
Comprehensive) 

MST - Uplift Comprehensive 

ECBH - In School Therapist 
AMI Kids - Functional Family Therapy; 
Level II only 

Clinical 
Treatment 

Intensive In-Home Services 

Wescare - Females only; Vance County 

Pete Thompson MP Home 

Eckerd @ Candor/Boomer - Males only 

Residential 

Tarheel Challenge 

131



Currituck Rationale for Advertising in the RFP 

Structured Activities * Indicate the programs the JCPC is planning to advertise in their RFP and provide a rationale for each

Mentoring X
 

Needed to fill a gap - no structured mentoring program in the county 

Parent/Family 
Skills 

X
 

Needed to address family discord and inadequate parenting 

Interpersonal 
Skills 

X
 

Needed to provide social competency training, life skills, conflict/anger management, communication skills, etc. 

Experiential Skills 
Tutoring/Academic 
Enhancement 

X
 

Needed to improve the academic performance of adjudicated and at-risk juveniles 

Vocational Skills 

Restorative Services 

Mediation 

Restitution X
 

Needed for Diversion, Level I and II restitution and community service as ordered by the court 

Teen Court X
 

Needed as a strong community based court diversion resource; offers positive peer modeling 

Community Day 
Program 

Structured Day 

Assessment Programs 

Psychological Assessment X
 

Needed for those ordered by the court 

Clinical 
Treatment 

Counseling X
 

Needed for diverted and court involved juveniles - cognitive approach; school based with some case management 

Home Based Family 
Counseling 

X
 

More home-focused interventions are needed for the higher risk offender and undisciplined juveniles 

Crisis Counseling 
Substance Abuse 
Treatment 
Sexual Offender 
Treatment 

Residential Programs 

Group Home 
Temporary 
Shelter 

Runaway Shelter 

Specialized Foster Care 

Temporary Foster Care 

132



Currituck County V.  Research-Based Programs Summary 

JCPC Funded 
Program Name or 

Type 
Does program provide  

service(s) or is it a structure? 

Primary 
Service 

Supplemental 
Service 

Prior 
SPEP 
Rating 

Current 
SPEP 
Rating Research-Based Rationale 

PASS - Counseling Service Counseling 

Cognitive 
Behavioral 

Training 

65/80 
CS 
65/80 
PR 

55/80CS 
64/80 PR 

The Standardized Program Evaluation 
Protocol (Lipsey-SPEP) does not take 
into account the program's receipt of 
referrals from juvenile court that are 

non-adjudicated youth. 

Restitution Service Restitution 
Behavior 

Management 58/80 58/80 

Program score improved by adding 
behavior management as a 

supplemental service; each restitution 
participant signs a contract for 

completion of their part of the program 
and understanding of their behavioral 

expectations for successful termination. 

Teen Court Structure 

No SPEP score  is available for this 
program 

133



 
 

VI. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Action Plan: 2013-14 
 

Goal: To prevent or reduce delinquent and at-risk behavior in the County and particularly among JCPC participants 
 

Objective Activities 
Output/Outcome 

Measures 

Person(s) 
Responsible 

 
1.0  To reduce alcohol 
and substance 
abuse/use among court 
involved and at-risk 
juveniles 

JCPC funded programs will 
address substance abuse and 
alcohol prevention with skills 
training or curriculum as 
appropriate; referral forms will 
identify juveniles who have 
known alcohol/substance abuse 
issues 
 

The actual number of 
juveniles in JCPC 
programs receiving SA 
prevention, education, 
assessment, or 
treatment services 

Department staff and 
program staff 

2.0  To reduce 
subsequent complaints 

Local programs will build 
relationships and provide 
cognitive interventions that are 
designed to redirect negative or 
inappropriate behaviors 
 

The percentage of 
subsequent complaints 
among juvenile 
offenders will 

decrease  

Department and 
program staff 

3.0  To reduce violations 
of community 
supervision 

Local programs provide 
curriculum and activities that are 
designed to redirect negative or 
inappropriate behaviors 
Increased communication 
between program staff and court 
counselors 
 

The total number of 
violations compared 
from one year to the 
next 

Department and 
program staff 

4.0  To reduce 
subsequent convictions 

Local programs will build 
relationships and provide 
cognitive interventions that are 
designed to redirect negative or 
inappropriate behaviors; 
adjudicated juveniles will be 
referred to programs that provide 
evidence-based interventions 
that reduce delinquency and 
recidivism  
 

The percentage of 
subsequent 
adjudications among 
juvenile offenders will 
decrease 

Department and 
program  staff  

134



5.0  To increase 
fulfillment of restitution 
obligations to victims 

Restitution program will set this 
as a measurable objective 

The percentage of 
successful or 
satisfactory 
completions 

Restitution 
Coordinator 

6.0  To increase 
parental accountability 
among parents of 
juveniles served 

JCPC funded programs must 
address parent involvement with 
the service plan or participant 
agreement 

Percentage of parents 
with at least some 
improvement; number 
of parent involvement 
events 

Program staff using 
an individual service 
plan and client 
contacts to document 

7.0  To increase 
improvement with the 
court among court 
referred juveniles 
served in JCPC 
programs 

JCPC funded programs serving 
court involved juveniles will track 
their progress with the court 
through termination in the client 
tracking system and develop a 
plan or strategy for following up 
with participants regarding 
additional court involvement 12 
months post termination 

Percentage of court 
involved juveniles 
participating in JCPC 
funded programs that 
demonstrate 
improvement with 
juvenile court 

Department and 
program staff 

Goal: 
To increase public 
awareness of 
delinquency 
prevention and 
intervention strategies 

The JCPC will provide limited 
sponsorship for the DREAM 
Team at the high school. 

DREAM Team 
activities throughout 
the year - High School 
athletes mentor other 
students at the 
elementary and middle 
school as well as the 
culminating field trip for 
DT volunteers 

PASS Program 
Coordinator and 
Assistant reporting 

Goal: 
To ensure a 
continuum of 
community services to 
address the needs of 
juveniles and their 
families 

The JCPC studies available 
resources and uses information 
to determe funding for applicant 
programs. 

Annual resource 
assessment and 
recommended 
programs for funding 

JCPC leadership and 
members 

135



VII. Request for Proposals

JCPC Continuation Funding FY 2013-14 

 Currituck  $81830  January 14, 2013 
County Anticipated County Allocation Date Advertised 

     The Juvenile Crime Prevention Council having studied the needs of juveniles in the county hereby publishes this 
Request for Proposals. 
     The North Carolina Department of Public Safety (NCDPS) anticipated funds in the above stated amount will be available 
for programs serving delinquent and at-risk youth for the state fiscal year:  2013-14 beginning on or after July 1, 2013.  Local 
match rate for JCPC funds required:  30%.  
     Based on identified needed programs and possible gaps in the service continuum, the following program types 
will be considered for funding:  

 Mentoring Services  Restitution/Community Service 

 Parent/Family Skill Building  Teen Court 

 Interpersonal Skill Building  Psychological Assessments 

 Counseling  Substance Abuse Treatment 

 Home Based Family Counseling  Tutoring/Academic Enhancement 

As a result of the Needs Assessment in the above named county, programs that reduce risk, address the needs of juveniles, 
and increase protective factors will be considered for funding. 

Elevated risk factors for delinquency:   
1) Juveniles rejected by pro-social peers;
2) Some SA/needs assessment; and
3) Moderate behavior problems in school

Elevated Needs for adjudicated juveniles: 
1) Moderate behavior problems in school; 4) Some family alcohol/substance abuse
2) Some delinquent peers;
3) Some substance abuse/needs assessment; and

Protective Factors to address risk and needs: 
Pro-social peers; self efficacy; and strong school motivation. 

The web-based program application is available on line at the Department of Public Safety web-site: 
http://www.ncdjjdp.org/jcpc/forms_agreements.html 

A grant-writing workshop is planned for February 1 at 305 West Freemason Street, Edenton.  Please 
register by calling 252-355-9013. 

Once applications are completed on line, print the entire application and submit signed originals per instructions 
below.  All applications must be printed and submitted by the deadline below to be considered for funding.  

Only local public agencies, 501 ©3 non-profit corporations and local housing authorities will be 
considered for funding. For additional information regarding the application process: 

Sandra Hill, Finance Officer   252-232-2381 
JCPC Chairperson / or Designee Telephone # 

Technical assistance is available by contacting: 

Nancy Hodges , Area Consultant at 252-947-1565. 

The deadline for receiving applications is 3/1/2013 by 
noon 

. Mail or deliver 5 applications to: 

Sandra Hill 153 Courthouse Road   
Currituck, NC  27929 

136



Program Funded Reason for Funding  (Check all that apply) 
 
 

PASS - Counseling  Meets funding priority   Compatible with research  Cost efficient  Addresses reductions of complaints, violations of supervision & convictions  Has 

evaluation component  Addresses parental accountability  Addresses use of alcohol/controlled substances  Addresses restitution to victims  Addresses 
gang participation 

 Other          Other        

 Would increase funding to this service if funds were available 

Restitution  Meets funding priority   Compatible with research  Cost efficient  Addresses reductions of complaints, violations of supervision & convictions  Has 

evaluation component  Addresses parental accountability  Addresses use of alcohol/controlled substances  Addresses restitution to victims  Addresses 
gang participation 

 Other          Other  Cost effective - no paid staff 

 Would increase funding to this service if funds were available 

Teen Court  Meets funding priority   Compatible with research  Cost efficient  Addresses reductions of complaints, violations of supervision & convictions  Has 

evaluation component  Addresses parental accountability  Addresses use of alcohol/controlled substances  Addresses restitution to victims  Addresses 
gang participation 

 Other Needed for diverted juveniles    Other  Cost effective - part time only 

 Would increase funding to this service if funds were available 

      
 Meets funding priority   Compatible with research  Cost efficient  Addresses reductions of complaints, violations of supervision & convictions  Has 

evaluation component  Addresses parental accountability  Addresses use of alcohol/controlled substances  Addresses restitution to victims  Addresses 
gang participation 

 Other          Other        

 Would increase funding to this service if funds were available 

 

137



Program Not 
Funded 

Reason for Not Funding (Check all that apply) 

No others 
applicants 

 Lack of funding, addresses priority need and would fund if resources allowed  Does not meet funding priority 

Not compatible with research  Lesser quality than another program funded of it’s type  Greater cost than program of 

same type and quality  Other  Other 

 Lack of funding, addresses priority need and would fund if resources allowed  Does not meet funding priority 

Not compatible with research  Lesser quality than another program funded of it’s type  Greater cost than program of 

same type and quality  Other  Other 

138



Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
County Plan 

 Currituck County 

2013-14 

Table of Contents 

I. Executive Summary (Year 1 and subsequent year updates) 

II. JCPC County Recommended Funding Plan with attached Program Descriptions

III. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Organization

IV. County Risk & Needs Assessment Summary with attached Data & Resources

V. Research–Based Programs Summary 

VI. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Action Plan

VII. County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Request for Proposals

VIII. Funding Decisions Summary

139



I.  Executive Summary 
Currituck County  

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
(3rd Year) 

The Currituck County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC), in fulfillment of the duties 
and responsibilities as set forth in the General Statutes of the State of North Carolina, has 
completed the activities required to develop this County Plan for FY 2013-14.   

The JCPC has identified the issues and factors which have an influence and impact upon 
delinquent youth, at-risk youth, and their families in Currituck County.  Further, the JCPC 
has identified the strategies and services most likely to reduce/prevent delinquent behavior. 

JCPC Action Plan:  A JCPC Action Plan to impact delinquent behavior has been developed. 
The JCPC proposes to:  

Prevent and reduce delinquent behavior 
Increase public awareness about delinquency prevention 
Provide a continuum of community resources to address delinquent and at-risk behavior 

Priorities for Funding:  Through a risk & needs assessment and a resource assessment, the 
JCPC has determined that the following services are needed to reduce/prevent delinquency 
in Currituck County.   

1. Teen Court
2. Mentoring
3. Restitution/Community Service
4. Parent/Family Skills
5. Tutoring/Academic Enhancement Services
6. Interpersonal Skills
7. Substance Abuse Treatment
8. Psychological Assessments
9. Counseling
10. Home-Based Family Counseling

Monitoring and Evaluation:  Each program funded in the past year by the JCPC has been 
monitored, and the forms and recommendations are on file in the DJJ Area Office.  The 
monitoring results and program outcomes and evaluations were considered in making 
funding allocation decisions. Monitoring results are on file for the following programs: 

• PASS Counseling Program – continued funding without conditions
• Teen Court – continued funding without conditions
• Restitution/Community Service – continued funding without conditions

Funding Recommendations: The JCPC published the Request for Proposals beginning 
January 14, 2013, with program applications due March 1, 2013 by noon.  Furthermore, the 

140



JCPC exceeded the 30-day minimum publication requirement by nearly two weeks. A 
district wide grant-writing workshop was provided on February 1, 2013 in Edenton. 
 
The JCPC screened submitted proposals and determined those which best meet advertised 
needed services.   
 
As required by statute, the JCPC recommends allocation of Juvenile Crime Prevention 
Funds to the following Programs in the amounts specified below for FY 2013-14: 
 
 
 

Program 
Recommendations 

DJJDP 
Funding 

Local 
Cash 
Match 

Total 

JCPC Administrative 
Certification Funds $15,000   $15,000 

$43,967 $13,190 $57,157 PASS with  
Teen Court 
component $14,949 $4,485 $19,434 

Restitution $7,914 $2,374 $10,288 

 
Program descriptions and service statistics are attached to the JCPC Funding Plan in 
Section II. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

141



Currituck 

II. JCPC County Funding Plan

Revised Available Funds: $81,830  Local Match: $20,049  Rate: 30% 

Program Descriptions and Service Statistics are included as an attachment to this funding plan. 

LOCAL FUNDING OTHER OTHER 

# Program Provider JCPC 
Funding 

Local 
Cash 
Match 

Local In-
Kind 

State/ 
Federal 

Funds Total 

1 JCPC Certification $15,000 $15,000 

2 PASS $58,916 $17,675 $76,591 

3 Restitution $7,914 $2,374 $10,288 

4 $0 

5 $0 

6 $0 

7 $0 

8 $0 

9 $0 

10 $0 

TOTALS: $81,830 $20,049 $0 $0 $0 $101,879 

The above plan was derived through a planning process by the Currituck County 

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council and represents the County’s Plan for use of these funds in 
FY 2013-14 

142



Section II(a)  Funded Program Descriptions 

Program Name/Component Type(s)/Sponsoring Agency: 

Currituck Restitution/Currituck County 

List the priority risk/needs and protective factors addressed by this program: 
Early and persistent delinquent behavior 

Protective factor:  High accountability 

Provide a brief description of each program component: 
Provides the means whereby victims of juvenile crime are compensated for their losses.  Also 
provides worksite placements for juveniles ordered to perform community service, or those 
referred under a diversion plan or contract. 

Funded Program Description 

Program Name/Component Type(s)/Sponsoring Agency: 

Teen Court/Currituck County Schools 

List the priority risk/needs and protective factors addressed by this program: 
Negative peer associations 

Protective factor:  Positive peer associations 

Provide a brief description of each program component: 
Teen court provides the first time non-violent offender admitting guilt a diversion resource.  The 
qualifying defendant appears before a jury of his/her peers to receive a constructive sentence.  
He/she must then agree to serve at least one jury duty as part of the constructive sentence.  
Currituck County's teen court is taught in high school as an elective course. 

143



Funded Program Descriptions (cont.) 

Program Name/Component Type(s)/Sponsoring Agency: 

Partnership for Adolescent Support Services/ Individual Counseling/ 
Currituck Co. Schools 

List the priority risk/needs and protective factors addressed by this program: 
Negative peer associations 
Serious behavior problems in school 
Protective factor:  School motivation and bonding; positive peer associations 

Provide a brief description of each program component: 
PASS provides individual counseling to court referred juveniles.  The program offers cognitive 
behavioral training in order to provide participants with replacement behaviors and help them 
stay on the right track in school.  Also has a contract with a family therapist for specific referrals. 

New for this coming year is the addition of an evidence-based Parent/Family Skill Building 
service, Strengthening Families. 

144



Program Services 2011-12 

Currituck County Comprehensive Strategy 

Delinquency Prevention Court Supervision 

All Youth Youth At Greatest Risk Immediate 
Intervention 

Graduated Sanctions 

2010-11 

NCJOIN 
& 
ALLIES 
Data School Year 

July 1, 
2011 - 
June 30, 
2012 

County 
Youth 
ages 
10-17 

Short & Long 
Term 
Out-of-School 
Suspension 

JCPC Non-
Court 
Admissions 

Juveniles 
at Intake 

Diversion 
Plans/ 
Contracts 

Juveniles 
Apprvd 
for Court 

Adjudi- 
cated 
Juveniles 

Protective 
Supervision 

Supervised 
Probation 

Deten- 
tion 
Adms 

YDC 
Commitments 

Post 
Release 
Supvs 

2,672 595 ST/3 LT 58 29 26 24 1 19 5 0 0 

P
ro

te
ct

iv
e
 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
e
d
 

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 

JCPC Youth Admitted 2011-2012 

Y
o
u
th

 
A

t-
R

is
k
 

C
o
u
rt

 C
o
u
n
s
e
lo

r 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
tio

n
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S

ta
tu

s 
U

n
k
n
o
w

n
 

In
ta

k
e
/ 

D
iv

e
rt

e
d
 

P
e
tit

io
n
 F

ile
d
 

U
n
d
is

c
ip

lin
e
d
 

A
d
ju

d
ic

a
te

d
 

Supervision 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 
C

o
m

m
itm

e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
rt

 
(D

e
fe

rr
e
d
) 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 T

o
ta

ls
 

Teen Court – Diversion 
5 1 9 1 16 

Restitution/Community Service – Diversion, 
Level I and II dispositional alternative 14 2 13 29 

Partnership of Adolescent Support 
Services (PASS) – Diversion, Level I and II 
dispositional alternative 

1 12 1 4 18 

63 

145



III. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Organization

Name Organization Title 

Chairperson 
Jennifer Goscinski School Counselor CCMS 

Vice-
Chairperson 

Ray Matusko 
Administrative Office of 

the Courts 
Clerk 

Secretary 
Bobbi Blount 

Currituck County 
Schools 

Prog. Assistant 

Treasurer 
Sandra Hill Currituck County Finance Officer 

Assessment 
Committee 
Chairperson 

Full Council 

Funding 
Committee 
Chairperson 

Sandra Hill Currituck County Finance Officer 

Number of 
members: 

26 

List meeting dates during the current fiscal year and identify the number of JCPC 
members in attendance for each. 

Meeting Date 
Number of Members in 

Attendance 
Quorum Present?  Yes/No 

September 10 17 yes 

October 8 15 yes 

November no meeting 

December 10 9 no 

January 14 16 yes 

February 11 16 yes 

March 11 14 yes 

April 8 scheduled 

May 13 scheduled 

146



IV. RISK & NEEDS ASSESSMENT SUMMARY REPORT

I. Risk Assessment Summary 
II. Needs Assessment Summary
III. Resource Assessment Summary
IV. Summary of Gaps and Barriers in the Community Continuum
V. Proposed Priority Services for Funding

Part I.  Risk 

The JCPC reviewed data gleaned from the Juvenile Risk Assessment instrument 
administered by Juvenile Court Counselors after juveniles are referred with a complaint 
alleging that a delinquent act has occurred and prior to adjudication of the juvenile.  The 
Juvenile Risk Assessment is an instrument used to predict the likelihood of the juvenile 
being involved in future delinquent behavior.  For some youth, some of the individual item 
ratings may be heavily dependent upon information reported by the juvenile or the parent(s). 
For these items (represented with a star next to them), there is a likelihood of under-
reporting the incidence of a particular behavior and the actual incidence may be higher than 
suggested by these figures.  In those cases, the figure should be interpreted as a measure 
of the minimum level of occurrence. 

See attached Risk Comparison data. 

Part II.  Needs 

The JCPC also reviewed data gleaned from the Juvenile Needs Assessment instrument 
administered by Juvenile Court Counselors prior to court disposition of a juvenile and at 
subsequent 90-day intervals through the period of court supervision.  The Juvenile Needs 
Assessment is an instrument used to examine a youth’s needs in the various domains of his 
life:  The Individual Domain, The School Domain, The Peer Domain, and the Community 
Domain.  This instrument was designed to detect service intervention needs as an aid in 
service planning.  As with the Juvenile Risk Assessment, some of the individual item ratings 
may be heavily dependent upon information reported by the juvenile or the parent(s).  For 
these items (represented with a star next to them), there is a likelihood of under-reporting 
the incidence of a particular behavior and the actual incidence may be higher than 
suggested by these figures.  In those cases, the figure should be interpreted as a measure 
of the minimum level of occurrence. 

See attached Needs Comparison data. 

147



Part III.  Summary of the Existing Community Resources 
(See attached Resource Continuum) 

Part IV.  Summary of Gaps and Barriers in the Continuum of Services 

• Geographical challenges – county is long and narrow; separated by water
• Transportation issues
• Connectivity to community resources is limited
• Lack of consistent phone services and permanent addresses for juveniles/families

Part V.  Proposed Priority Services for Funding 

The JCPC compared the services needed to address elevated Juvenile Risk Factors and 
Juvenile Needs with services currently available in the community.  Services which are 
currently available in the community from other resources, and sufficient to meet the needs 
of court involved youth or those youth most at-risk for court involvement are not considered 
as a priority for JCPC funding.    

The JCPC proposed the following services be approved as the funding priorities for 
FY 20013-14 and advertised in the annual Request for Proposal. 

• Teen Court
• Mentoring
• Restitution/Community Service
• Parent/Family Skills
• Tutoring/Academic Enhancement Services
• Interpersonal Skills
• Substance Abuse Treatment
• Psychological Assessments
• Counseling
• Home-Based Family Counseling

See attached Rationale for Advertising in the RFP. 

Also, Section VII.  Request for Proposals 

148



CURRITUCK Juvenile Court Data 

Overall Risk Level: 84.6  % of 52 
 juveniles were 
at low 

 risk of 
reoffending. 

Elevated Risk 

1) Juveniles rejected by pro-social peers;
2) Some SA/needs assessment*; and
3) Moderate behavior problems in school

Overall Needs 
Level: 85.3 % of 68 juveniles had low needs. 

Elevated Needs 

1) Moderate behavior problems in school;
2) Some delinquent peers;
3) Some substance abuse/needs assessment*; and

4) Some family substance/alcohol abuse*

2010-11 School Data 

Statewide: 

There are a total of 16 reportable acts: possession of a controlled substance, possession of a weapon, 
possession of alcoholic beverage, possession of a firearm/explosive, assault on school personnel, assault 
with weapon, assault inflicting serious injury, sexual assault, sexual offense, indecent liberties, bomb 
threat, robbery with a weapon, burning of a school building, kidnapping, rape, and death by other than 
natural causes.  Robbery without a weapon was dropped. The number of reportable acts statewide in 
2010-11 was 11657 with 6096 of those occurring at the high school level. 

"Elementary, middle, and high schools differ in the types of acts most frequently reported. Acts most 
frequently reported in elementary school were 1) possession of a weapon excluding firearms, 2) assault 
on school personnel, and 3) possession of a controlled substance. In middle school the order was 1) 
possession of a weapon excluding firearms, 2) possession of a controlled substance, and 3) possession 
of an alcoholic beverage; while in high school the order was 1) Possession of a controlled substance, 2) 
possession of a weapon excluding firearms, and 3) possession of an alcoholic beverage." 

Statewide school data continues to indicate a trend in suspensions where black males in 8th or 9th grade 
were most likely to be out-of-school. Of exceptional students, the "Specific Learning Disabled" group was 
more likely to be suspended.  However, multiple short term suspensions were slightly down over a five-
year period beginning in 2006-07 to 2010-11.  Long-term suspensions and expulsions were down. 

The gender of most out-of-school disciplinary action is statistically significant as it is predominantly male.  
The race is less significant from county to county depending on the demographic.  In the east, suspended 
students in Currituck and Dare counties are more likely to be white with Gates and Perquimans as likely 
to suspend white or black students. 

County: 

In county high schools, the number and rate per 1000 students for reportable acts:  25 with a rate of 
20.89; the state rate is 14.15.  For every minority student suspended out of school, there were seven 
white students suspended. 

The total number of short-term suspensions was 595, long-term 3, and no expulsions.  The number/rate 
per 100 high school students for short-term suspensions was 420 or 35.09 with the state at only 29.00. 

County Drop-Out Information: 

County dropout statistics indicate a rate of 3.16 in 2009-10 to 3.73 in 2010-11; an increase of 20.0%. 

149



 

150



RISK COMPARISION DATA 2011-12 Currituck County 52 

Distinct Juveniles 
Prior 
Adjudication County State 

No prior adjudic. 90.4% 79.3% 

Overall Risk County State 
Prior 
Undisciplined 0.0% 2.4% 

Low Risk 84.6% 69.4% 
Prior 1 - 3 
Misdemn 7.7% 12.0% 

Medium Risk 11.5% 23.0% 
Prior F-I Felony, 
A1 1.9% 5.8% 

High Risk 3.8% 7.6% Prior A-E Felony 0.0% 0.5% 

Age at First Complnt County State 
Substance 
Abuse County State 

Age 12 and over 90.4% 85.7% No known SA 61.5% 71.8% 

Under 12 9.6% 14.3% Some abuse N/A 28.8% 15.7% 

Need 
Asst/Treatmt 9.6% 12.5% 

Referrals to Court County State 
School 
Discipline County State 

Current Referral Only 71.2% 62.5% No problems 32.7% 17.3% 

1 Prior Referral 15.4% 18.1% Minor problems 1.9% 9.2% 

2-3 Prior Referrals 11.5% 12.2% 
Moderate 
problems 36.5% 28.6% 

4+ Prior Referrals 1.9% 7.2% Serious problems 28.8% 44.9% 

151



Peer Group County State Parental Supvs County State 

Good peer group 57.7% 39.4% 
Willing/Able to 
spvs 92.3% 79.6% 

Rejected by peers 40.4% 39.1% Willing/Unable 7.7% 19.0% 

Assc w/ negtv peers 1.9% 16.2% Unwilling/Unable 0.0% 1.4% 

Gang member/assc  0.0% 5.3% 

82.7% had no prior assaults; 94.2% had no prior runaway behaviors. 

152



NEEDS COMPARISION DATA 2011-12  Currituck County 68 

     Distinct Juveniles 

        

(Individual Characteristics)   Peers County State  

    Good peer support 47.1% 35.8% 

Overall Needs County State   Rejected by peers 19.1% 11.8% 

Low Needs 85.3% 64.7%  Some del peers 32.4% 32.3% 

Medium Needs 14.7% 31.0%  Reg assoc. w/ dels 1.5% 13.9% 

High Needs 0.0% 4.2%  Gang member 0.0% 6.1% 
 

  

 

 

 

  

    Mental Health County State  

Academic Function County State   No MH needs 58.8% 35.5% 

At grade level 100.0% 90.6%  MH needs addressed 35.3% 32.9% 

Below grade level 0.0% 9.4%  Need more assess 5.9% 31.6% 
 

  

 

 

 

  

       

School Behavior County State   Alcohol/SA County State  

No Problems 25.0% 23.4%  No Known substance use 72.1% 70.3% 

Minor Problems 14.7% 12.4%  
Some substance use, need 
further assessment 22.1% 16.2% 

Moderate Problems 26.5% 23.8%  
Substance abuse, assessment 
or treatment needed 5.9% 13.5% 

Serious Problems 33.8% 40.4%        
 

  

 

    

       

153



(Family Characteristics) 

Family Criminality County State 

Domestic Discord County State No family histx 85.3% 63.5% 

Supportive home 89.7% 76.5% Has family histx 11.8% 28.8% 

Domestic Discord 8.8% 18.1% Has family court/gang 2.9% 7.7% 

Domestic Violence 1.5% 5.4% 

Parenting Skills County State Fam SA/Alcohol Use County State 

Inadequate 1.5% 3.8% No known use 89.7% 89.9% 

Adequate 77.9% 45.0% 
Fam. Uses 
drugs/alcohol 10.3% 10.1% 

Marginal  20.6% 51.2% 

154



Currituck 
County  Resource Continuum - At a 
Glance 

Instructions:  Adjust arrows to cover target populations 

 JCPC funded 

Comprehensive Strategy 

Prevention Graduated Sanctions 

Target Populations 

Program 
Services & 
Structures 
Categories  Available Programs/Services 

All 
Yout

h 

Youth at 
Greatest 

Risk 

Pre-
Adjudicat
ed Youth 

Delinque
nt- Level 
I/ Prot. 

Supervisi
on 

Delinque
nt- Level 
II   Youth 

Delinque
nt- Level 
III  Youth 

Post 
Relea

se 
Youth 

Grades 3-5 Too Good for Drugs 

4-H Programming 

Countywide Recreation 

School Based Tutoring (as needed) 
Northeast Workforce Development 
Board 
YMCA (Site & School-based 
programming) 

Structured 
Activities 

Currituck MS After-School Program 

Teen Court 

Restitution/Community Service 
Restorative 

Services 

155



Currituck County Learning Center & Twilight 
Program Community 

Day 
Programs 

PASS - Assessments 
GAIN - Assessments (Uplift 
Comprehensive) 

Assessmnt 
Services 

Mobile Crisis - Integrated Family Svc 

PASS - Counseling 
PASS - Family Counseling  
(Jessica Heider) 
JJ/MH Partnership (MST Uplift 
Comprehensive) 

MST - Uplift Comprehensive 

ECBH - In School Therapist 
AMI Kids - Functional Family Therapy; 
Level II only 

Clinical 
Treatment 

Intensive In-Home Services 

Wescare - Females only; Vance County 

Pete Thompson MP Home 

Eckerd @ Candor/Boomer - Males only 

Residential 

Tarheel Challenge 

156



Currituck Rationale for Advertising in the RFP 

Structured Activities * Indicate the programs the JCPC is planning to advertise in their RFP and provide a rationale for each

Mentoring X
 

Needed to fill a gap - no structured mentoring program in the county 

Parent/Family 
Skills 

X
 

Needed to address family discord and inadequate parenting 

Interpersonal 
Skills 

X
 

Needed to provide social competency training, life skills, conflict/anger management, communication skills, etc. 

Experiential Skills 
Tutoring/Academic 
Enhancement 

X
 

Needed to improve the academic performance of adjudicated and at-risk juveniles 

Vocational Skills 

Restorative Services 

Mediation 

Restitution X
 

Needed for Diversion, Level I and II restitution and community service as ordered by the court 

Teen Court X
 

Needed as a strong community based court diversion resource; offers positive peer modeling 

Community Day 
Program 

Structured Day 

Assessment Programs 

Psychological Assessment X
 

Needed for those ordered by the court 

Clinical 
Treatment 

Counseling X
 

Needed for diverted and court involved juveniles - cognitive approach; school based with some case management 

Home Based Family 
Counseling 

X
 

More home-focused interventions are needed for the higher risk offender and undisciplined juveniles 

Crisis Counseling 
Substance Abuse 
Treatment 
Sexual Offender 
Treatment 

Residential Programs 

Group Home 
Temporary 
Shelter 

Runaway Shelter 

Specialized Foster Care 

Temporary Foster Care 

157



Currituck County V.  Research-Based Programs Summary 

JCPC Funded 
Program Name or 

Type 
Does program provide  

service(s) or is it a structure? 

Primary 
Service 

Supplemental 
Service 

Prior 
SPEP 
Rating 

Current 
SPEP 
Rating Research-Based Rationale 

PASS - Counseling Service Counseling 

Cognitive 
Behavioral 

Training 

65/80 
CS 
65/80 
PR 

55/80CS 
64/80 PR 

The Standardized Program Evaluation 
Protocol (Lipsey-SPEP) does not take 
into account the program's receipt of 
referrals from juvenile court that are 

non-adjudicated youth. 

Restitution Service Restitution 
Behavior 

Management 58/80 58/80 

Program score improved by adding 
behavior management as a 

supplemental service; each restitution 
participant signs a contract for 

completion of their part of the program 
and understanding of their behavioral 

expectations for successful termination. 

Teen Court Structure 

No SPEP score  is available for this 
program 

158



VI. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Action Plan: 2013-14

Goal: To prevent or reduce delinquent and at-risk behavior in the County and particularly among JCPC participants 

Objective Activities 
Output/Outcome 

Measures 

Person(s) 
Responsible 

1.0  To reduce alcohol 
and substance 
abuse/use among court 
involved and at-risk 
juveniles 

JCPC funded programs will 
address substance abuse and 
alcohol prevention with skills 
training or curriculum as 
appropriate; referral forms will 
identify juveniles who have 
known alcohol/substance abuse 
issues 

The actual number of 
juveniles in JCPC 
programs receiving SA 
prevention, education, 
assessment, or 
treatment services 

Department staff and 
program staff 

2.0  To reduce 
subsequent complaints 

Local programs will build 
relationships and provide 
cognitive interventions that are 
designed to redirect negative or 
inappropriate behaviors 

The percentage of 
subsequent complaints 
among juvenile 
offenders will 

decrease

Department and 
program staff 

3.0  To reduce violations 
of community 
supervision 

Local programs provide 
curriculum and activities that are 
designed to redirect negative or 
inappropriate behaviors 
Increased communication 
between program staff and court 
counselors 

The total number of 
violations compared 
from one year to the 
next 

Department and 
program staff 

4.0  To reduce 
subsequent convictions 

Local programs will build 
relationships and provide 
cognitive interventions that are 
designed to redirect negative or 
inappropriate behaviors; 
adjudicated juveniles will be 
referred to programs that provide 
evidence-based interventions 
that reduce delinquency and 
recidivism  

The percentage of 
subsequent 
adjudications among 
juvenile offenders will 
decrease 

Department and 
program  staff  

159



5.0  To increase 
fulfillment of restitution 
obligations to victims 

Restitution program will set this 
as a measurable objective 

The percentage of 
successful or 
satisfactory 
completions 

Restitution 
Coordinator 

6.0  To increase 
parental accountability 
among parents of 
juveniles served 

JCPC funded programs must 
address parent involvement with 
the service plan or participant 
agreement 

Percentage of parents 
with at least some 
improvement; number 
of parent involvement 
events 

Program staff using 
an individual service 
plan and client 
contacts to document 

7.0  To increase 
improvement with the 
court among court 
referred juveniles 
served in JCPC 
programs 

JCPC funded programs serving 
court involved juveniles will track 
their progress with the court 
through termination in the client 
tracking system and develop a 
plan or strategy for following up 
with participants regarding 
additional court involvement 12 
months post termination 

Percentage of court 
involved juveniles 
participating in JCPC 
funded programs that 
demonstrate 
improvement with 
juvenile court 

Department and 
program staff 

Goal: 
To increase public 
awareness of 
delinquency 
prevention and 
intervention strategies 

The JCPC will provide limited 
sponsorship for the DREAM 
Team at the high school. 

DREAM Team 
activities throughout 
the year - High School 
athletes mentor other 
students at the 
elementary and middle 
school as well as the 
culminating field trip for 
DT volunteers 

PASS Program 
Coordinator and 
Assistant reporting 

Goal: 
To ensure a 
continuum of 
community services to 
address the needs of 
juveniles and their 
families 

The JCPC studies available 
resources and uses information 
to determe funding for applicant 
programs. 

Annual resource 
assessment and 
recommended 
programs for funding 

JCPC leadership and 
members 

160



VII. Request for Proposals

JCPC Continuation Funding FY 2013-14 

 Currituck  $81830  January 14, 2013 
County Anticipated County Allocation Date Advertised 

     The Juvenile Crime Prevention Council having studied the needs of juveniles in the county hereby publishes this 
Request for Proposals. 
     The North Carolina Department of Public Safety (NCDPS) anticipated funds in the above stated amount will be available 
for programs serving delinquent and at-risk youth for the state fiscal year:  2013-14 beginning on or after July 1, 2013.  Local 
match rate for JCPC funds required:  30%.  
     Based on identified needed programs and possible gaps in the service continuum, the following program types 
will be considered for funding:  

 Mentoring Services  Restitution/Community Service 

 Parent/Family Skill Building  Teen Court 

 Interpersonal Skill Building  Psychological Assessments 

 Counseling  Substance Abuse Treatment 

 Home Based Family Counseling  Tutoring/Academic Enhancement 

As a result of the Needs Assessment in the above named county, programs that reduce risk, address the needs of juveniles, 
and increase protective factors will be considered for funding. 

Elevated risk factors for delinquency:   
1) Juveniles rejected by pro-social peers;
2) Some SA/needs assessment; and
3) Moderate behavior problems in school

Elevated Needs for adjudicated juveniles: 
1) Moderate behavior problems in school; 4) Some family alcohol/substance abuse
2) Some delinquent peers;
3) Some substance abuse/needs assessment; and

Protective Factors to address risk and needs: 
Pro-social peers; self efficacy; and strong school motivation. 

The web-based program application is available on line at the Department of Public Safety web-site: 
http://www.ncdjjdp.org/jcpc/forms_agreements.html 

A grant-writing workshop is planned for February 1 at 305 West Freemason Street, Edenton.  Please 
register by calling 252-355-9013. 

Once applications are completed on line, print the entire application and submit signed originals per instructions 
below.  All applications must be printed and submitted by the deadline below to be considered for funding.  

Only local public agencies, 501 ©3 non-profit corporations and local housing authorities will be 
considered for funding. For additional information regarding the application process: 

Sandra Hill, Finance Officer   252-232-2381 
JCPC Chairperson / or Designee Telephone # 

Technical assistance is available by contacting: 

Nancy Hodges , Area Consultant at 252-947-1565. 

The deadline for receiving applications is 3/1/2013 by 
noon 

. Mail or deliver 5 applications to: 

Sandra Hill 153 Courthouse Road   
Currituck, NC  27929 

161



Program Funded Reason for Funding  (Check all that apply) 
 
 

PASS - Counseling  Meets funding priority   Compatible with research  Cost efficient  Addresses reductions of complaints, violations of supervision & convictions  Has 

evaluation component  Addresses parental accountability  Addresses use of alcohol/controlled substances  Addresses restitution to victims  Addresses 
gang participation 

 Other          Other        

 Would increase funding to this service if funds were available 

Restitution  Meets funding priority   Compatible with research  Cost efficient  Addresses reductions of complaints, violations of supervision & convictions  Has 

evaluation component  Addresses parental accountability  Addresses use of alcohol/controlled substances  Addresses restitution to victims  Addresses 
gang participation 

 Other          Other  Cost effective - no paid staff 

 Would increase funding to this service if funds were available 

Teen Court  Meets funding priority   Compatible with research  Cost efficient  Addresses reductions of complaints, violations of supervision & convictions  Has 

evaluation component  Addresses parental accountability  Addresses use of alcohol/controlled substances  Addresses restitution to victims  Addresses 
gang participation 

 Other Needed for diverted juveniles    Other  Cost effective - part time only 

 Would increase funding to this service if funds were available 

      
 Meets funding priority   Compatible with research  Cost efficient  Addresses reductions of complaints, violations of supervision & convictions  Has 

evaluation component  Addresses parental accountability  Addresses use of alcohol/controlled substances  Addresses restitution to victims  Addresses 
gang participation 

 Other          Other        

 Would increase funding to this service if funds were available 

 

162



Program Not 
Funded 

Reason for Not Funding (Check all that apply) 

No others 
applicants 

 Lack of funding, addresses priority need and would fund if resources allowed  Does not meet funding priority 

Not compatible with research  Lesser quality than another program funded of it’s type  Greater cost than program of 

same type and quality  Other  Other 

 Lack of funding, addresses priority need and would fund if resources allowed  Does not meet funding priority 

Not compatible with research  Lesser quality than another program funded of it’s type  Greater cost than program of 

same type and quality  Other  Other 

163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text
179



dembrey
Typewritten Text
180



dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text
181



dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text
182



dembrey
Typewritten Text
183



dembrey
Typewritten Text

dembrey
Typewritten Text
184



185



186



NORTH CAROLINA 
        LEASE AGREEMENT 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between, CURRITUCK 
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter referred to as 
"Lessor"; and THE TRUCK ACCESSORY CENTER, INC., a North Carolina corporation, 
hereinafter referred to as "Lessee" ; 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 That subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out, said Lessor does hereby let 
and lease unto said Lessee, and said Lessee does hereby accept as tenant of Lessor, space for 
storing recreational vehicles as inventory for Lessee’s business which space is a portion of that 
certain 4.32 acres tract or parcel of land owned by Lessor which is shown on that plat map 
recorded in Plat Book K, Page 106, Currituck County Registry, and located at 106 Caratoke 
Highway, Moyock Township, Currituck County, North Carolina and more particularly described 
as follows, (the “Premises”):  
 
 Beginning at an existing iron rebar situated in the southwest corner of Currituck County 
 property more particularly shown at Plat Cabinet K, Slide 106 of the Currituck County 
 Registry, the northeast corner of Lot  55, Phase 2, North Point Subdivision more 
 particularly shown at Plat Cabinet D, Slide 76 of the  Currituck County  Registry and 
 northwest corner of Frank C. Bernard, Jr. and wife, Phyllis A. Bernard property more 
 particularly described at Deed Book 283, Page 179 of the Currituck County Registry; 
 thence from the point of beginning along the western boundary line of Currituck County 
 property more particularly shown at Plat Cabinet K, Slide 106 of the Currituck County 
 Registry North 32 degrees 59 minutes 55 seconds West 167.00 feet to a point, cornering; 
 thence North 57 degrees 00 minutes 05 seconds East 274.85 feet to a set rebar in the 
 southeastern boundary line of Currituck County property more particularly shown at Plat 
 Cabinet K, Slide 106 of the Currituck County Registry, cornering; thence South 32 
 degrees 59 minutes 55 seconds East 167.00 feet to a set rebar; thence South 57 degrees 
 00 minutes 05 seconds West 274.85 feet to the point and place of beginning. 
 
 The terms and conditions of this Lease are as follows: 
 

1) The term of this Lease shall be for a period of ONE (1) year beginning on the 
FIRST day of, May, 2013, and ending on the LAST day of April, 2014, unless 
extended or terminated under the other provisions of this Lease. 
 

2) As rental for said premises, Lessee shall pay to Lessor, at the address noted 
below, and without notice or demand therefore, the sum of EIGHTEEN 
THOUSAND AND NO/ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($18,000.00) payable upon 
execution of this lease agreement.  
 

3) Lessee shall use and occupy the premises for the purpose of storing recreational 

187



vehicles as inventory for Lessee’s business and in connection thereto, shall 
comply with all laws, ordinances, orders, or regulations of any lawful authority 
having jurisdiction over the premises and the use thereof. 

4) It is understood and agreed that Lessee shall be responsible for any improvement
to the Property and for the upkeep, repair, and maintenance of the Property and
any improvements during the term of this Lease or any extension hereof.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Lessor shall be responsible for the upkeep,
repair and maintenance of the pond area located on the Premises. At the
expiration of the term of this Lease, or the prior termination of said Lease as
herein provided, Lessee shall be responsible for removing any improvements
from the Property and restoring the Property to substantially the same condition as
existed on the date this lease agreement was entered into, normal wear and tear
excepted.

5) During the term of this Lease, Lessee shall maintain comprehensive general
liability insurance on an occurrence basis with maximum limits of liability in the
amount of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) for property damage,
bodily injury, personal injury or death to anyone person; Lessee shall also
maintain excess liability coverage with a per occurrence limit of One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000.00); and Lessee shall keep its property on the demised
premises insured against loss or damage by fire or other casualties.

6) Lessee shall neither use nor occupy the demised premises or any part thereof for
any unlawful or ultrahazardous business purpose nor operate or conduct its
business in a manner constituting a nuisance of any kind.

7) Lessee shall pay prior to delinquency all taxes and assessments of every kind and
nature which may be imposed or assessed upon or with respect to the structure
and equipment placed on the premises by Lessee.

8) If the premises are wholly or partially destroyed by fire or other casualty, rental
shall abate in proportion to the loss of use thereof, and Lessee shall, at its own
expense, promptly restore the premises to substantially the same condition as
existed before damage or destruction, whereupon full rental shall resume.

9) If the whole of the premises, or such portion thereof as will make the premises
unsuitable for use contemplated hereby, shall be taken under the power of
eminent domain (including any conveyance in lieu thereof), then the term hereof
shall cease as of the date possession thereof is taken by the condemnor, and rental
shall be accounted for as between Lessor and Lessee as of that date.

10) All applications in connection with necessary utility services on the Premises
shall be made in the name of Lessee only, and Lessee shall be solely liable for
utility charges as they become due, including those for electricity, gas, water,
sewer, and telephone services.

188



11) Lessee shall be in exclusive control and possession of the Premises, and Lessor
shall not be liable for any injury or damages to any property or to any person on
or about the Premises nor for any injury or damage to any property of Lessee.
Lessee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Lessor from and against
any claims, damages, or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees), whether
due to damage to the premises, claims for injuries to persons or property, or
administrative or criminal action by governmental authority, where such claims,
damages, or expenses result from the negligence, misconduct or breach of any
provision of this Lease Agreement by Lessee, its agents, employees or invitees.

12) If Lessee shall pay the rent and perform and observe all the other covenants and
conditions to be performed and observed by it hereunder, Lessee shall at all times
during the term hereof have the peaceable and quiet enjoyment of the Premises
without interference from Lessor or any person lawfully claiming through Lessor.

13) All notices provided for in this Lease Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
deemed to have been given when sent by registered or certified mail addressed to
Lessor at:

Currituck County Manager 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 204 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

and to Lessee at: The Truck Accessory Center 
Attn:  Frank C. Bernard, President 
126 Caratoke Highway 
Moyock, North Carolina 27958 

14) This Lease Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of North Carolina.

15) This Lease Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

16) This Lease Agreement contains the complete agreement of the parties regarding
the terms and conditions of the lease of the premises, and there are no oral or
written conditions, terms, warranties, understandings or other agreements
pertaining thereto which have not been incorporated herein. This Lease
Agreement may be modified only by written instrument duly executed by both
parties or their respective successors in interest.

17) If any provision of this Lease shall be declared invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of the Lease shall continue in full force and effect.

 [THIS PORTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

189



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals as of the 
day and year first above written. 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 

By:_________________________________ 
Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

(COUNTY SEAL) 

THE TRUCK ACCESSORY 
CENTER, INC. 

By:_________________________________ 
President 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 
Secretary 

(SEAL) 

190



191



192



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION OPPOSING HOUSE BILL 983 
DESIGNATING RED DRUM, SPOTTED SEA TROUT AND STRIPED BASS AS  

COASTAL GAME FISH 
 

WHEREAS, the Fisheries Reform Act (FRA) recognizes that commercial fishermen perform an 
essential function by providing wholesome food for the citizens of the State while struggling to 
earn a living in an industry whose resources are managed by both State and Federal agencies 
and whose labor accounts for revenue, jobs, and a significant tax base; and 
 
WHEREAS, designating “game fish status” for red drum, spotted sea trout, striped bass, and 
other fish species will deprive consumers in North Carolina and across the nation of access to 
fresh locally harvested seafood; and 
 
WHEREAS, allocating 100% of the resources to less than 3% of the population of our state and 
to specific user groups would be a travesty of fairness, a violation of the FRA, and devastating 
to the economies of coastal communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, degrading a resource to “game fish status only” has never enhanced the resource, 
and will threaten coastal communities with the loss of jobs and access for all citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina as a recognized leading producer of seafood has one of the most 
diverse fisheries in the United States and should be allowed to continue harvesting wild caught 
fish species in order to bring to market a wonderfully fresh, sustainably managed, revenue 
producing, protein resource for all its citizens. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
opposes designating red drum, spotted sea trout and striped bass as game fish by the North 
Carolina General Assembly and asks that they honor the Fisheries Reform Act by continuing to 
make all fish species available for the benefit and enjoyment of all North Carolina citizens. 
 
ADOPTED this the 6th day of May, 2013. 
 
       
      ______________________________  
      S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________    
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 
 
  

193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina, during its 
regularly scheduled meeting held on May 6, 2013, authorized that, pursuant to GS 160A 
and 270(b), the following property listed below be disposed of: 

Asset # Description 

7230 Zeva-K-9 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the 
County of Currituck reserves the right to reject any and all bids. 

ADOPTED, this 6th day of May, 2013. 

S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 

204



Number TDA2013014

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-503500 Temporary Services 30,000$  
15442-502000 Salaries - Regular 30,000$  
15442-514000 Travel 3,000$  
15442-514500 Training & Education 3,000$  
15442-514800 Fees Paid to Officials 1,200$  
15442-588000 Contingency 11,200$  
15442-590000 Capital Outlay 10,000$  

44,200$  44,200$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013 , passed the following amendment to the budget 
resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Occupancy Tax - Promotion (15442) - Transfer funds to increase temporary staff for the 
upcoming summer season, utilizing unspent funds from vacant marketing position; increase 
travel due to increased participation in travel shows; increase in fees paid to officials due to 
advisory board meeting more often and increase in capital outlay to replace the server and 
camera that are no longer functioning.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - No change.

205

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Number TDA2013015

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15447-516001 Signs 1,000$  
15447-554000 Insurance & Bonds 485$  
15447-561000 Professional Services 1,485$  

1,485$  1,485$  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 6th day of May, 2013 , passed the following amendment to the budget 
resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Related (15447) -Transfer funds for additional signage and for 
increased cost of the flood insurance for the Whalehead Club.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - No change.

206

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com

	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action:
	12-01-03 Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	Map
	Resolution
	Resolution 2

	Public Hearing and Action:
	13-04 Case Analysis
	13-04 Application, TRC Comments, TRC Response

	Public Hearing and Action:
	PB 13-03 Case Analysis
	PB 13-03 Site Plan
	PB 13-03 Application
	PB 13-03 Community Meeting

	Consideration and Approval of Recommendation to Award Bid for Barco Way to Barnhill Contracting Company
	Appointment to Senior Citizen Advisory Board
	Appointments to Game Commission
	Game Commission Applications

	Budget Amendments
	Approval of April 1, 2013 Minutes
	CDBG Monthly Status Report
	JCPC Funding Plan FY 2014
	Regional Aviation and Technical Training Center Change Order 002
	Approval of Ordinance to demolish property located at 4317 Caratoke Hwy, Barco, NC
	Dolan 1
	Dolan 2
	Dolan 3
	Dolan 4
	Dolan 5
	Dolan 6
	Donlan Garage

	Approval of Records Retention and Disposition Schedule
	Consideration of Lease Agreement with the Truck Accessory Center
	Resolution Opposing HB 983 Designating Red Drum,Spotted Sea Trout and Striped Bass as Coastal Game Fish
	Resolution Authorizing "Piggybacking" Purchase of 800 Mhz Radios and Equipment
	Resolution - Authorizing Finance Director and Deputy Finance Director to wire funds through Vantage South
	Resolution Surplus Sheriff K-9 Zeva
	Budget Amendments - TDA
	boc-agenda-13may06.pdf
	Currituck County Board of Commissioners Agenda  Historic Currituck County Courthouse

	boc-agenda-13may06.pdf
	Currituck County Board of Commissioners Agenda  Historic Currituck County Courthouse




